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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 37 Annual General Meeting of the members of Sarthak Industries Limited will be held on Wednesday,
th

the 15 September, 2021 at 5.00 p.m. IST through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the
following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES

st
1. To receive, consider and adopt the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March, 2021 together with

the Report of the Board of Directors andAuditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Deepika Arora (DIN: 07117491) who retires by rotation and being eligible offers herself for re-
appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESSES

st
3. To ratify and confirm payment of remuneration of Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31 , 2022 and in this regard to

consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject
to such Orders, Rules, Notifications, as may be promulgated by the appropriate authorities in this regard, the remuneration of Rs.
20,000/- (Rs. Twenty Thousand only) plus taxes as applicable and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses for the financial year

st
ending 31 March, 2022 as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, payable to M/s. A. GOYAL AND CO., Cost
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101308) for conducting the audit of the cost records of the Company be and is hereby ratified
and confirmed.”

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 196(3) read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded for continuation of holding of office of Wholetime Director by Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma (DIN-03644480) upon attaining
the age of 70 (Seventy) years on October 15, 2021 upto the expiry of his present term of office, on the existing terms and conditions

th
as approved by the Shareholders of the Company at their annual general meeting held on 27 September, 2019.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all acts and take all such
steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution”.

By order of the Board of Directors

Place: Indore RIYABHANDARI
th

Dated: 14 August, 2021 COMPANY SECRETARY
(ACS-55403)

th
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NOTES:

1. In view of the prevailing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (the “MCA”) vide its General Circulars No. 14/2020
dated April 8, 2020, Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021
dated 13th January, 2021 (hereinafter, collectively referred as the “MCA Circulars”) read with SEBI Circular No.

th
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15
January, 2021 (hereinafter referred to as “SEBI Circulars”) has allowed companies to conduct their annual general meetings
through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), thereby, dispensing with the requirement of physical

th
attendance of the members at their AGM and accordingly, the 37 Annual General Meeting (the “AGM” or the “Meeting”) of Sarthak
Industries Limited (the “Company”) will be held through VC or OAVM in compliance with the said circulars and the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) (the “Act”) and Rules made thereunder and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) (the “Listing Regulations”). The deemed venue for the AGM shall be
the Registered Office of the Company.

2. Members attending the AGM through VC or OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of
the CompaniesAct, 2013.

3. IN TERMS OF THE MCA CIRCULARS AND SEBI CIRCULARS, THE REQUIREMENT OF SENDING PROXY FORMS TO
HOLDERS OF SECURITIES AS PER PROVISIONS OF SECTION 105 OF THE ACT READ WITH REGULATION 44(4) OF THE
LISTING REGULATIONS, HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH. THEREFORE, THE FACILITY TO APPOINT PROXY BY THE
MEMBERS WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE AND CONSEQUENTLY, THE PROXY FORM AND ATTENDANCE SLIP ARE NOT

th
ANNEXED TO THIS NOTICE CONVENING THE 37 AGM OF THE COMPANY (THE “NOTICE”).

However, in pursuance of Section 113 of the Act and Rules framed thereunder, the corporate members are entitled to appoint
authorized representatives for the purpose of voting through remote e-Voting or for the participation and e-Voting during the AGM,
through VC or OAVM. Institutional Shareholders (i.e., other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send scanned copy
(PDF / JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / appropriate Authorization Letter together with attested
specimen signature(s) of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer through e-mail at
lnjoshics@gmail.com with a copy marked to

th th
4. Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 06 September, 2021 to 15 September,

th
2021 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of 37 Annual General Meeting.

5. An Explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 (the “Act”) in respect of item no. 3 and 4 of the notice
set out above, is annexed hereto.

6. The requirement to place the matter relating to appointment ofAuditors for ratification by members at everyAnnual General Meeting
is done away with vide notification dated May 7, 2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, New Delhi. Accordingly, no

th
resolution is proposed for ratification of appointment of Auditors, who were appointed in the Annual General Meeting held on 26
September, 2017.

7. Details of Directors retiring by rotation / seeking appointment / re-appointment at the ensuing Meeting are provided in the
“Annexure” to the Notice pursuant to the provisions of (i) the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and (ii) Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2”), issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

8. In terms of circulars issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), it is now mandatory to furnish a copy of PAN card to
the Company or its RTAin the following cases viz. deletion of name, transmission of shares and transposition of shares.

9. In terms of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, securities of listed companies can only
be transferred in demat form w.e.f.April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or transposition of securities. In
view of the above, Members are advised to dematerialise the shares held in physical form.

10. Members who are holding equity shares in physical form are advised to submit particulars of their bank account, viz. name and
address of the branch of the bank, MICR code of the branch, type of account and account number to our Registrar and Share
TransferAgent, Sarthak Global Limited, 170/10, Film Colony, R.N.T. Marg, Indore (MP) 452001.

11. In case of Joint-holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members
of the Company will be entitled to vote during theAGM.

12. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM, are requested to write to the
Company at least 10 days before the meeting (i.e. on or before September 05, 2021) through email on
sarthakindustries@yahoo.in. The same will be replied by the Company suitably.

13. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Act, the
Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, and the
relevant documents referred to in the Notice will be available electronically for inspection by the members during theAGM.

14. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available electronically for inspection without any fee by the members from the
date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to
sarthakindustries@yahoo.in.

15. In accordance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and the SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the AGM alongwith the Annual Report of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, is being sent only through e-mail, to those Members whose e-mail addresses
are registered with the Company or the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (the “RTA”), i.e., M/s. Sarthak Global Limited or the
Depository Participant(s). The Notice and the Annual Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 shall be available on the
websites of the Company viz., www.sarthakindustries.com and of the Stock Exchanges where Equity Shares of the Company are
listed. TheAGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting
system during theAGM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com.

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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Type of Login Method
Shareholders

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and
password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The
URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies
where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.Additionally, there
is also links provided to access the system ofall e-Voting Service Providers i.e.
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website
directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/ Registration/EasiRegistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN
No. from a e-Voting link availableon www.cdslindia.com home page or click on
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/ EvotingLogin The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to
directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

(3)

16. Since theAGM will be held through VC or OAVM, no Route Map is being provided with the Notice.

17. The Members can join theAGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the commencement of the
Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made
available to atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding
2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to
attend theAGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

18. Voting through electronic means (E-Voting) and E-Voting during theAGM

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations

th
2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 05, 2020 and 13 January, 2021, the Company is
providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the
Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through
electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the
e-voting system on the date of theAGM will be provided by CDSL.

(I) THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E- VOTINGAND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGSAREAS UNDER:

th th
(i) The remote e-voting period begins on Sunday, 12 September, 2021 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on Tuesday, 14 September,

2021 at 5.00 p.m. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized
th

form, as on 08 September, 2021 i.e. cut-off date (record date), may cast their vote electronically. The remote e-voting module
shall be disabled by CDSLfor voting thereafter.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to
provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed
that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This
necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting
to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/
Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs,
thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting
process.

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email
Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDLis given below:

Individual
Shareholders
holding securities 
in Demat mode 
with CDSL

SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED 2020-21
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Type of Login Method
Shareholders

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open
web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or
on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User
ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of
e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account
number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting
& voting during the meeting

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting
option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual
Shareholders
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with NSDL

Individual
Shareholders
(holding
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their Depository
Participants

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option
available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through
Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login Type Helpdesk Details

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-43.

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Individual
Shareholders
holding securities in 
demat mode with 
NSDL

Individual
Shareholders
holding securities in 
Demat mode with 
CDSL

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than individual holding 
in Demat form.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
2) Click on “Shareholders” module.
3) Now Enter your User ID :

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any

Company, then your existing password is to be used.
6) If you are a first time user, follow the steps given below:

(4)





7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker by
sending their request in advance at least 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id,
mobile number at sarthakindustries@yahoo.in. The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may
send their queries in advance 10 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at sarthakindustries@yahoo.in. These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the
meeting.

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions 
through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during
theAGM.

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same shareholders have not
participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the
facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

(III) PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR
OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate
(front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
Company/RTAemail id at sarthakindustries@yahoo.in or sgl@sarthakglobal.com respectively.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) which
is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository.

19. If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-23058738 and 022-23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, )
Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, MarathonFuturex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel
(East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43.

20. OTHER INSTRUCTIONS

1. Shareholders can update their mobile numbers and e-mail IDs (which may be used for sending future communication(s)) by writing to 
sgl@sarthakglobal.com.

2. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice and holding
shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 08th September, 2021 may obtain the login ID and password by sending an email to
sarthakindustries@yahoo.in or sgl@sarthakglobal.com or helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com by mentioning their Folio No./DP ID
and Client ID No.

3. Mr. L. N. Joshi, FCS 5201, Practicing Company Secretary (CP No 4216) has been appointed as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting
process in a fair and transparent manner.

4. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of e-voting at the AGM, first download the votes cast at the AGM and thereafter
unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting and shall make a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or
against, invalid votes, if any, and whether the resolutions have been carried or not, and such report shall then be sent to the Chairman or a
person authorized by him, within 48 (forty eight) hours from the conclusion of the AGM, who shall then countersign and declare the result
of the voting forthwith.

5. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.sarthakindustries.com not later
than 48 hours of conclusion of theAnnual General Meeting of the Company and will be communicated to the Stock Exchange(s).

By order of the Board of Directors

Place: Indore RIYABHANDARI
th

Dated: 14 August, 2021 COMPANY SECRETARY
(ACS-55403)

(6)

SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED 2020-21



ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102 of the CompaniesAct, 2013

Item No. 3:

The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of the Audit Committee has approved the appointment and remuneration of M/s. A.
GOYAL AND CO., Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101308), to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year
ending March 31, 2022 at a remuneration of` Rs. 20,000/- (Rupees Twenty Thousand only) plus taxes as applicable and reimbursement of out of
pocket expenses.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration payable to the cost auditors has to be ratified by the
shareholders of the Company.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution at Item No. 3 for approval of the members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested financially or otherwise in
the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice.

Item No. 4:

th th
The Shareholders of the Company at the 35 Annual General Meeting held on 27 September, 2019 approved re-appointment of Mr. Yogender Mohan

th
Sharma (DIN-03644480) as an Executive Director of the Company for a period of three years with effect from 15 July, 2019. Mr. Yogender Mohan
Sharma, Wholetime Director will attain the age of 70 years in the month of October 2021. the Company seeks consent of the members by way of
special resolution for continuation of their holding of existing office after the age of 70 years during the currency of their term of appointment under the
provisions of Section 196 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the same terms of appointment and remuneration as approved by members earlier at

th th
the 35 Annual General Meeting held on 27 September, 2019. The Board therefore recommends the special resolutions for your approval.

Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma has been serving as a Director of the Company since 2014. He has been actively involved in the operations of the
Company and has rich experience of over 40 years of managerial level in manufacturing units. It would be in the interest of the Company to continue
the employment of Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma as Whole-Time Director of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of (i) the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
(ii) Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2”), issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, Details of Directors seeking
appointment/ re-appointment at the ensuing Meeting are provided and forms a part of the Notice.

Except Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma (the appointee), none of the other Directors or key managerial personnel of the Company or their relatives are
concerned or interested,

By order of the Board of Directors

Place: Indore RIYABHANDARI
th

Dated: 14 August, 2021 COMPANY SECRETARY
(ACS-55403)
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT/ APPOINTMENT AT THE ENSUING ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36(3) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONAND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
REGULATION 2015AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD OF GENERAL MEETING:

  Name of Director MS. DEEPIKA ARORA
(DIN: 07117491) (DIN: 03644480)

  Date of Birth 03.05.1983 15.10.1951

Age 38 years 69 years

Date of first appointment 16.03.2015 15.07.2014

Expertise / Experience  in specific She is having vast experience in the field He is having over 40 years experience of
functional areas of finance. managerial level in manufacturing units.

Qualification C.A. B.Sc.

Terms and Conditions of As per the resolution passed by the As per the resolution passed by the 
Appointment / Re-appointment shareholders at the Annual General shareholders at the Annual General

nd th
Meeting held on 22  September, 2015. Meeting held on 27  September, 2019.

Remuneration last drawn Rs. 9,000/- as Sitting Fee during the Rs. 10,65,622/- (during 
during FY 2020-21. financial year 2020-21. financial year 2020-21.

Remuneration proposed to be paid As per existing terms and conditions. As per existing terms and conditions.

No. & % of Equity Shares held in the Nil Nil
Company (as on 31.03.2021).

Directorship in other Companies Nil Sarthak Global Limited
(As on 31.03.2021)

Number of Meetings of the Board 9 out of 13 11 out of 13
attended during the year.

Chairman / Member of the  Nil Chairman of Stakeholders’
Committees of the Board Directors Relationship Committee and Member of
of other Companies (includes only Audit Committee of Sarthak Global Limited
Audit Committee and Stakeholders'
Relationship Committee)

Chairman/Member of the Nil Member of Audit Committee, Stakeholders’
Committees of the Board of Relationship Committee and Chairman of
Directors of the Company Risk Management Committee of the

Company

Relationship between Not related to any director of the Not related to any director of the Company
directors inter-se. Company

By order of the Board of Directors

Place: Indore RIYA BHANDARI
th

Dated: 14 August, 2021 COMPANY SECRETARY
(ACS-55403)

Sarthak Industries Ltd.
L99999MH1982PLC136834
Regd. Office: Room No. 4, Anna Bhuvan, 3rd Floor,
87C Devji Ratansi Marg, Dana Bunder, Mumbai (MH), 400009
Phone: 022-23486740, 
Email Id: sarthakindustries@yahoo.in
Website: www.sarthakindustries.com

MR. YOGENDER MOHAN SHARMA
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

th
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting 37 Annual Report together with the Audited Statement of Accounts of the Company for the

st
year ended 31 March, 2021.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

st
The performance of the Company for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2021 is summarized below:

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

Revenue from operations 13354.29 9556.04

Other Income 176.86 618.71

Profit/ (Loss) before Depreciation, Finance Cost,
Exeptional items & Tax Expenses 452.30 673.00

Less: Depreciation 66.36 44.94

Profit/ (Loss) before Finance Cost, Exceptional Items and
Tax Expenses 385.94 628.06

Less: Finance Cost 91.92 119.02

Profit/ (Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax Expenses 294.02 509.04

Add/ (Less): Exceptional items - (108.09)

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax Expenses 294.02 400.95

Less: Tax Expenses 84.78 129.96

Profit/ (Loss) after Taxation 209.24 270.99

Add/(Less): Other Comprehensive Income 96.25 (68.19)

Total Comprehensive Income 305.49 202.80

Balance brought forward from previous year 2758.21 2555.41

Amount available for appropriation 3063.70 2758.21

APPROPRIATION – –

Amount Carried to Balance sheet 3063.70 2758.21

Paid Up Equity Share Capital 696.89 696.89

Earnings Per share (Rs.10/- each)
Basic & Diluted (in Rs.) 3.00 3.89

INDIANACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IndAS)

st
As mandated by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) from 1 April, 2017.
The financial statements of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS, prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the other
recognized accounting practices and policies to the extent applicable.

DIVIDEND

Your Directors have decided to plough back the profits to the operational fund requirement of the Company. Hence, no dividend has been
recommended for the year under review.

AMOUNT TRANSFERRED TO RESERVE

st
The Board of Directors has not proposed any amount for transfer to reserves for the year ended 31 March 2021.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year there was no change in the nature of business of the company.

OPERATIONS

During the year under review, Revenue from operations and Other Income of the Company stood at Rs. 13,531.15 Lacs showing
increasing trend over the previous year Revenue from operations and Other Income Rs. 10,174.75 Lacs. Profit before tax has decreased
and stood at Rs. 294.02 Lacs as compared to previous year figures Rs. 400.95 Lacs and Net Profit also decreased and stood at Rs.
209.24 Lacs as compared to previous year net profit Rs. 270.99 Lacs. Your Directors are hopeful for better performance in the coming
years.

COVID-19 PANDEMIC

In view of the Covid-19 pandemic, there have been several restrictions imposed by governments across the globe on the travel, goods
movement and transportation considering public health and safety measures.
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The Company is primarily engaged in business of manufacturing of LPG cylinders and trading of Agri and Non Agri Commodities. This
st

COVID-19 pandemic has impacted the operations of the company during the year ended on 31  March 2021. Based on the facts and 
circumstances existing as of that date, the company does not anticipate any material uncertainties associated with its nature and
duration. The management will continue to closely monitor the evolving situation and assess its impact on the business of the Company.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

The Company has not received any unsecured loan from director during the financial year.

SHARE CAPITAL

st
During the year under review, the Company has not raised any paid up share capital. The Paid up Equity Share Capital as at 31 March
2021 stood at Rs. 6,96,88,500/-. The Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor has granted any stock option or

st
sweat equity shares. As on 31 March 2021, none of the Directors of the Company hold instruments convertible into equity shares of the
Company.

TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATIONAND PROTECTION FUND

There were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

INSURANCE

All properties and insurable interests of the Company including Building and Plant & Machinery have been adequately insured.

HUMAN RESOURCE & INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Industrial relations were harmonious throughout the year. The Board wishes to place on record their sincere appreciation to the co-
operation extended by all the employees in maintaining cordial relations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCEAND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION &ANALYSIS REPORT

A separate report on Corporate Governance in terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
forms integral part of this report. Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance Report issued by Practicing 
Company Secretary is attached separately to this report.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report as required under Regulation 34 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is attached separately to thisAnnual Report.

DIRECTORS’RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3) (c) read with Section
134(5) of the CompaniesAct, 2013:

st
I) That in the preparation of the annual accounts for financial year ended 31 March, 2021; the applicable accounting standards have
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

ii) That the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of financial year and of the profit/
loss of the Company for that period;

iii) That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of thisAct for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) That the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v) That the Directors have laid down internal financial controls, which are adequate and are operating effectively;

vi) That the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operating effectively.

DIRECTORSAND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Appointment/ Reappointment:

Ms. Deepika Arora (DIN: 07117491), Director of the Company retires by rotation in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of
Association of the Company and being eligible offer herself for re-appointment.

Details of the proposal for appointment/ re-appointment of Directors are mentioned in the Notice of theAnnual General Meeting.

During the year, Mr. Amit Jain, Company Secretary of the Company has resigned from the post of Company Secretary w.e.f. 16.03.2021
due to his pre-occupation. Ms. Riya Bhandari has been appointed as whole-time Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 01.04.2021.

Declaration by directors:

During the year, declarations received from the Directors of the Company pursuant to Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. Board
appraised the same and found that none of the director is disqualified holding office as director.

Declaration by Independent Directors:

All Independent Directors have given declarations under section 149(7) that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.
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In compliance with Rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, all Independent Directors of the
Company have registered themselves with the Indian Institute of CorporateAffairs (IICA), Manesar and have included their names in the
databank of Independent Directors within the statutory timeline. They have also confirmed that they will appear for the online proficiency
test, wherever applicable.

LISTING OF SHARES

The equity shares of the Company are listed on the BSE Limited (BSE). The listing fee for the year 2021-22 has already been paid to the
Stock Exchange.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURESANDASSOCIATES

As on 31.03.2021, the Company does not have any subsidiary company or joint venture or associate company.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board met 13 times during the financial year. The details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report that forms part of
this annual report. The intervening gap between any two Meetings was within the period prescribed under the CompaniesAct, 2013.

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the year under review, one meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 20.01.2021, without the attendance of Executive
Directors and members of management.All the Independent Directors were present in that meeting.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has laid down a code of conduct for all Board members and Senior Management and Independent Directors of the
Company. All the Board members including Independent Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with
the code of conduct. Declaration on adherence to the code of conduct is forming part of the Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees, and individual directors pursuant
to the provisions of theAct, SEBI Listing Regulations and the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India on January 5, 2017.

The Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation
of the working of its Committees. The evaluation of all the directors and the Board as a whole was conducted based on the criteria and
framework adopted by the Board. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The
performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors who also
reviewed the performance of the Secretarial Department. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME

Details of the programmes for familiarization of the Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the 
Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company, etc. are available on the website of the
Company at the link: http://www.sarthakindustries.com/images/Familiarisation%20Programme-SIL.pdf

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and during the year, no reportable
material weaknesses in the design or operation were observed.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Your Company has not given any loans or guarantees or made investment beyond the limits mentioned under the provisions of Section
186 of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of
the business. During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract/ arrangement/ transaction with related parties which could
be considered material in accordance with the policy of the Company on materiality of related party transactions. Thus FormAOC 2 is not
required.

The Policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party transactions as approved by the Board may be
accessed on the Company’s website at the link: http://www.sarthakindustries.com/images/Related_Party_Policy.pdf

A statement showing the disclosure of transactions with related parties as required under Ind AS 24 is set out separately in this Annual
Report.

MATERIAL CHANGESAND COMMITMENT BETWEEN THE DATE OF THE BOARD REPORTAND END OF FINANCIALYEAR

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the end of the financial year to
which this financial statements relate and the date of this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGYABSORPTIONAND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS/ OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo stipulated under Section
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are given in the “Annexure A”
forming part of this report.

PARTICULARS OF THE EMPLOYEESAND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the CompaniesAct, 2013 read with rule 5(1)
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of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, are given in the “Annexure B” forming part of
this report.

During the year under review, none of the employee of the company is drawing more than Rs.1,02,00,000/- per annum or Rs. 8,50,000/-
per month for the part of the year. The information required under Rule 5(2) and (3) of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is provided in theAnnexure forming part of this Report. In terms of the first provision to Section 136 of
the Act, the Report and Accounts are being sent to the Members excluding the aforesaid Annexure. Any Member interested in obtaining
the same may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company.

Further, none of directors is drawing any remuneration or commission from any subsidiary or associate companies.

PARTICULARS OF THE EMPLOYEESAND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the CompaniesAct, 2013 read with rule 5(1)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, are given in the “Annexure B” forming part of
this report.

During the year under review, none of the employee of the company is drawing more than Rs.1,02,00,000/- per annum or Rs. 8,50,000/-
per month for the part of the year. The information required under Rule 5(2) and (3) of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is provided in theAnnexure forming part of this Report. In terms of the first provision to Section 136 of
the Act, the Report and Accounts are being sent to the Members excluding the aforesaid Annexure. Any Member interested in obtaining
the same may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company.

Further, none of directors is drawing any remuneration or commission from any subsidiary or associate companies.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’APPOINTMENTAND REMUNERATION

The policy on Directors’ Appointment and Remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes,
independence of a director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, and under
Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 adopted by the Board, is appended as
“Annexure C” forming part of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The details pertaining to composition of Audit Committee are included in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this
report.All the recommendations made by theAudit Committee were accepted by the Board.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism which also incorporates a Whistle Blower Policy in line with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Regulation 22 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to report genuine
concerns or grievances. The Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy may be accessed on the Company’s website i.e.
www.sarthakindustries.com.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013 & Regulation 17(9) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board of the Company has formed a Risk Management Committee to frame, implement and
monitor the Risk Management Plan for the Company. The details of risk have been covered in the Management Discussion andAnalysis
Report forming part of the Board’s report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as the said provisions are not
applicable to the Company.

AUDITORS &AUDITORS REPORT

M/s. SMAK & Co., CharteredAccountants, (Firm Registration No. 020120C) [Formerly known M/s.Atishay &Associates] were appointed
th

as Statutory Auditors of your Company at the Annual General Meeting held on 26 September, 2017, for a term of five consecutive years
rd th

from the conclusion of 33 Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 38 Annual General Meeting of the Company subject to
ratification by members at every subsequent Annual General Meeting. In accordance with the Companies Amendment Act, 2017,

th
enforced on 07 May, 2018 by the Ministry of CorporateAffairs, the appointment of StatutoryAuditors is not required to be ratified at every
Annual General Meeting. Therefore Company is not seeking any ratification of appointment of M/s SMAK & Co., Chartered Accountants
as the auditors of the Company, by the members at ensuing general meeting.

Your Company has received a certificate from M/s. SMAK & Co., CharteredAccountants confirming their eligibility to continue asAuditors
of the Company in terms of the provisions of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. They have also
confirmed that they hold a valid certificate as required under the provisions of Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations.

The notes referred to by theAuditors in their Report are self explanatory and hence do not require any explanation.

Further, there was no fraud in the Company, which was required to report by statutory auditors of the Company under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of CompaniesAct, 2013.

COSTAUDIT

The Board has appointed M/s A. Goyal & Co., Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 101308) as Cost Auditors of the Company for
conducting the audit of cost records maintained by the Company for the financial year 2021-22. The Cost Audit Report for the year 2019-
20 was filed with the Central Government with additional fee.
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INTERNALAUDITORS

Internal Audit for the year ended March 31, 2021 was done by M/s. ‘S K Malani & Co’ (Firm Registration Number: 159090W). The Board
takes his suggestions and recommendations to improve and strengthen the internal control systems. The Audit Committee reviews
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's internal control environment and monitors the implementation of audit recommendations.

The Board has appointed M/s. ‘S K Malani & Co.’ (Firm Registration Number: 159090W)), as Internal Auditor of the company for the year
ended March 31, 2022.

SECRETARIALAUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the Company has appointed M/s Ajit
Jain & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2020-21. The
SecretarialAudit Report for the financial year 2020-21 is annexed herewith as “Annexure D” forming part of this report.

There are no adverse comments, qualifications or reservations or adverse remarks in the SecretarialAudit Report.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Board of Directors has adopted the code as per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; The Details of the said code
is available on website of the Company at the weblink:
http://www.sarthakindustries.com/Code%20of%20Practices%20and%20Procedures%20for%20fair%20disclosure-SIL.pdf

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

The Business Responsibility Reporting as required by Regulation 34(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, is not applicable to your Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2021.

SIGNIFICANTAND MATERIAL ORDERS

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulator or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status of the
Company and future operations.

APPLICATION OR PROCEEDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCYAND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

There is no application made or no proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. There was no instance of
onetime settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company complies with all applicable mandatory secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

IMPLEMENTATION OF CORPORATEACTION

During the year under review, the Company has not failed to implement any CorporateActions within the specified time limit.

CREDIT RATING

Credit rating obtained along with revisions thereto for bank facilities of the Company during FY 2020-21 as under:

S. No. RatingAgency Facilities Credit Rating

1. CARE Ratings Ltd. Long term Bank Facilities CARE BB; Stable/ CAREA4 (Double B)

2. CARE Ratings Ltd. Short term Bank Facilities CAREA4 (AFour)

No change in the Credit Rating during the financial year 2020-21.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, the annual return is available at Company’s website
http://www.sarthakindustries.com/Annual_return.html.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL)ACT, 2013

The Company has in place an anti harassment policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under the
policy. An Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has also been set up to redress complaints received on sexual harassment.There was
no complaint received from any employee during the financial year 2020-21 and hence no complaint is outstanding as on 31.03.2021 for
redressal.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors wish to convey their appreciation to all the employees of the Company for their enormous personal efforts as well as their
collective contribution during the year. The Directors would also like to thank the shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers, financial
institutions and all other business associates for their continuous support given by them to the Company and their confidence in the
management.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

YOGENDER MOHAN SHARMA DEEPIKAARORA
Whole-time Director Director
DIN: 03644480 DIN: 07117491

Place: Indore
th

Dated: 14 August, 2021
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ANNEXURE ‘A’TO BOARD’S REPORT

Information as per section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year
st

ended 31 March, 2021 are as under.

(A) Conservation of energy-

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

Various operational measures were taken to reduce energy consumption such as operation control on timing of lighting and other
equipment, especially in off-season and timely preventive maintenance of equipment to enhance their efficiency.

(ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

No steps taken during the year 2020-21.

(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments:

No Capital investment on energy conservation equipments during the year 2020-21.

(B) Technology absorption-

(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption:

A continuous interaction and exchange of information in the industry is being maintained with a view to absorbing, adapting and
innovating new methods that may be possible.

(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution:

The main benefits derived are Quality improvement and Cost reduction.

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year):

The Company’s operations do not require import of technology

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development:

No expenses have been incurred on Research and Development during the year 2020-21.

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo

During the year under review, the foreign exchange outgo was Rs. 8,136.13 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 4,646.25 Lacs) and the foreign
exchange earning was Rs. 532.96 Lacs (Previous year Rs. 130.40 Lacs).
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ANNEXURE ‘B’TO BOARD’S REPORT

DISCLOSURE PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL) RULES 2014:

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the
financial year:

Executive Director Ratio of median remuneration

Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma 6.00

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Udesh Dassani 0.06

Mr. Vijay Rathi 0.08

Ms. DeepikaArora 0.05

Mr. Nimishek Ved 0.06

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

Name of Directors, CFO and Company Secretary % increase in the remuneration in the financial year 2020-21

Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma (Whole-time Director) 4.93%

Mr. Udesh Dassani (Non-Executive Independent Director) Nil

Mr. Vijay Rathi (Non-Executive Independent Director) Nil

Ms. DeepikaArora (Non-Executive Director) Nil

Mr. Nimishek Ved (Non-Executive Director) Nil

Mr. Kailash KumarAgarwal (Chief Financial Officer) 5.00%

Mr.Amit Jain (Company Secretary) * 8.00%

*Mr.Amit Jain resigned w.e.f. 16.03.2021

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 6%.

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 34

(v) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last
financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

The average percentile increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year i.e.
2020-21 was 3.87% whereas the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration for the same financial year 2020-21 was
5.96%. There is normal increase in managerial remuneration as per the industry standard.

(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company.
It is affirmed that remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
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ANNEXURE ‘C’TO BOARD’S REPORT

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

This Nomination and Remuneration Policy is being formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along
with the applicable rules thereto and Regulation 19 of Listing Regulation, as amended from time to time. This policy on nomination and
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management has been formulated by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and has been approved by the Board of Directors.

DEFINITIONS

“Act” means the CompaniesAct, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, as amended from time to time.

“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

“Company” means “Sarthak Industries Limited”.

“Committee” means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted or reconstituted by the Board.

“Directors” means Directors of the Company.

“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him and includes
perquisites as defined under the Income-taxAct, 1961;

“Key Managerial Personnel” means:
i) The Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager;
ii) The Company Secretary;
iii) The Whole-time Director;
iv) The Chief Financial Officer; and
v) such other officer as may be prescribed

“Senior Management” means the personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team excluding Board of
Directors.

“Policy” or “This policy” means Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

“Independent Director” means a Director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement with the
Stock Exchanges.

NOMINATIONAND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee consisting of three or more non-executive directors out of which at
least one half are independent directors. The Chairman of the Committee is an independent director.

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The role of the Committee is as under:

(a) To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to
the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

(b) To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

(c) To carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance;

(d) To devise a policy on Board diversity;

(e) To identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in Senior Management in accordance
with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal;

(f) To recommend to the Board on remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management;

(g) To ensure that level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient, relationship of remuneration to performance
is clear and meet appropriate performance benchmarks;

(h) To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any statutory notification,
amendment or modification, as may be applicable.

POLICY FORAPPOINTMENT OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, DIRECTOR, KMPAND SENIOR MANAGEMENT:

I. Appointment criteria and qualifications

(a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for appointment as
Managerial Personnel, Director or KMP or Senior Management and recommend to the Board his /her appointment.

(b) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he /she is considered for
appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is
sufficient /satisfactory for the concerned position.

(c) Appointment of Independent Directors is also subject to compliance of provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Schedule IV and rules thereunder and the ListingAgreement.

(d) The proposed appointee shall also fulfill the following requirements for appointment as a director:

i. Shall possess a Director Identification Number;
ii. Shall not be disqualified under the CompaniesAct, 2013;
iii. Shall give his written consent to act as a Director;
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iv. Shall endeavour to attend all Board Meetings and wherever he is appointed as a Committee Member, the Committee
Meetings;

v. Shall abide by the Code of Conduct established by the Company for Directors and Senior Management Personnel;
vi. Such other requirements as may be prescribed, from time to time, under the Companies Act, 2013, Equity Listing Agreements

and other relevant laws.

II. Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in theAct or under any other applicableAct, rules and regulations there under, the
Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management
Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the saidAct, rules and regulations.

III. Retirement

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act and the prevailing
policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same
position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

POLICY FOR REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, DIRECTOR, KMPAND SENIOR MANAGEMENT:

I. Remuneration to Executive Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, shall review and approve the remuneration
payable to the Executive Directors of the Company within the overall limits approved by the shareholders.

The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, shall also review and approve the
remuneration payable to the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

The Executive Director and Key Managerial Personnel shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be approved by the
Board. The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including employer’s contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical
expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board/the Person authorized by the Board and approved by the
shareholders and Central Government, wherever required.

II. Remuneration to Non-Executive and Independent Directors

The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, shall review and approve the remuneration
payable to the Non-Executive and Independent Directors of the Company within the overall limits approved by the shareholders.

Non-Executive and Independent Directors shall be entitled to sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board and the
Committees thereof. The amount of such fees shall be decided by the Board on recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

The Non-Executive and Independent Directors shall also be entitled to profit related commission in addition to the sitting fees, if 
approved by the Board on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The remuneration payable to the Non-Executive and Independent Director shall be subject to ceiling/limits as provided under the
CompaniesAct, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

III. Remuneration to other employees

Employees shall be assigned grades according to their qualifications and work experience, competencies as well as their roles and
responsibilities in the organization. Individual remuneration shall be determined within the appropriate grade and shall be based on
various factors such as job profile, skill sets, seniority, experience and prevailing remuneration levels for equivalent jobs.

REVIEWANDAMENDMENT

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee or the Board may review and amend the Policy as and when it deems necessary.

In case of any amendment(s), notification(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. issued by the relevant authorities, not being consistent with
the provisions laid down under this Policy, then such amendment(s), notification(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. shall prevail upon the
provisions hereunder and this Policy shall stand amended accordingly from the effective date as laid down under such amendment(s),
clarification, circular(s) etc.

(17)
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ANNEXURE ‘D’TO BOARD’S REPORT

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31  MARCH, 2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(CIN: L99999MH1982PLC136834)

rd
Room No. 4,Anna Bhuvan, 3 Floor,
87C, Devji Ratansi Marg,
Dana Bunder,
Mumbai (MH) 400009

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Sarthak Industries Limited (CIN: L99999MH1982PLC136834) (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of

st
SecretarialAudit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year 01 April, 2020

st
to 31 March, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Sarthak Industries Limited
st

(“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

(I) The CompaniesAct, 2013 (theAct) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation)Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The DepositoriesAct, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of IndiaAct, 1992 (‘SEBIAct’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SubstantialAcquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the
Company during the audit period);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 as
applicable;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company
during the audit period); and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not applicable to the Company
during the audit period);

(vi) Other Laws applicable to the Company as per the representations made by the management.
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of theAct, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above.

We further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of theAct.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven
days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through and there were no dissenting views by any members of the Board during the period under review.

st
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We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that Some of the Forms are filed with Registrar of Companies withAdditional Fees.

We further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of:

(I) Public/Rights/Preferential Issue/debentures/sweat equity.

(ii) Redemption/ buy-back of Securities.

(iii) Merger/ amalgamation/ reconstruction etc.

(iv) Foreign technical collaborations.

Place: Indore ForAjit Jain & Company
th

Date: 14 August, 2021 (Company Secretary)

Ajit Jain
Proprietor

FCS No.: 3933; C P No.: 2876
UDIN- F003933C000785692

Peer Review Certificate No.: 767/2020
PCS Unique ID NO. : S1998MP023400

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure I” and forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure I to Secretarial Audit Report

To,
The Members,
SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(CIN: L99999MH1982PLC136834)

rd
Room No. 4,Anna Bhuvan, 3 Floor,
87C Devji Ratansi Marg,
Dana Bunder, Mumbai (MH) 400009

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books ofAccounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The SecretarialAudit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Indore ForAjit Jain & Company
th

Date: 14 August, 2021 (Company Secretary)

Ajit Jain
Proprietor

FCS No.: 3933; C P No.: 2876
UDIN- F003933C000785692

Peer Review Certificate No.: 767/2020
PCS Unique ID NO. : S1998MP023400
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Industrial Structure and Developments

Your Company is primarily engaged in manufacturing of LPG Cylinders. The LPG Cylinders are supplied to Oil Companies like Indian Oil
Corporation Ltd., Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd., Bharat Petroleum Corporation Ltd. etc. and also to Private Companies. Apart
from this, Company is also engaged in trading of agri-commodities, non agri-commodities and other businesses on opportunity basis. As
a major of diversification, the Company has also decided to engage in Mining and Mineral Based Industry.

During the year 2020-21, the Company’s performance showing increasing trend in turnover but decreasing in profitability as compared to
last year. Looking at global economic slowdown and other factors, the performance of Company is satisfactory. The Management is
hopeful that Company’s future is bright in the coming years.

During FY 2020-21, the COVID-19 pandemic developed rapidly into a global crisis, forcing governments to enforce lock-downs of all
economic activity. Protecting lives and allowing health care systems to cope have required isolation, lockdowns, and widespread
closures to slow the spread of the virus. The health crisis is therefore having a severe impact on economic activity. As a result of the
pandemic, The global economy reported de-growth of 3.3% in 2020 compared to a growth of 2.9% in 2019.

The global economy is projected to grow by 5.5% in 2021 largely due to the successful roll-out of vaccines across the globe, coupled with
policy support in large economies, according to the International Monetary Fund (IMF).

Opportunities and Threats

st
This COVID-19 pandemic has surely impacted the operations of the Company in many ways.Accordingly as of 31 March 2021, based on
the facts and circumstances existing as of that date, the Company does not anticipate any material uncertainties which affects its liquidity
position and also ability to continue as a going concern. However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the
uncertainties associated with its nature and duration. The management will continue to closely monitor the evolving situation and assess
its impact on the business of the Company.

Depending on market opportunities the Company is undertaking Merchant Trading activities of various commodities.

The future performance of your Company would depend to a large extent on its ability to successful diversification, market of
commodities. We are hopeful that through the combination of market developments and expansion activity, there will be healthy growth
over the next few years. Due to COVID-19 pandemic, the situation is uncertain and it is difficult to predict when economies will fully
normalise. Hence, FY22 is likely to be a challenging year.

Segment–wise or product-wise performance

Your Company has identified two business segments in line with theAccounting Standard on Segment Reporting. These are:

Cylinders - Manufacturing and repairing of LPG cylinders

Merchant Trading - Trading of various commodities, materials etc.

The segment wise performance in detail is given in Note 40 to the audited accounts of the Company as available in thisAnnual Report.

Outlook

Due to COVID-19 pandemic, the financial year 2021-22 will be a challenging year for the global economy as well as Indian economy. The
Management is hopeful that in future, the Company will grow its manufacturing and trading activities and will get good orders for the
manufacturing of cylinders as well as repairing of old cylinders.

Risk and concerns

Profitability may be affected on account of competition from existing and prospective manufacturers of the Company’s products. The 
Company is exposed to risks from change in policy of similar companies which are major buyers for the Company’s product, further
increase in input costs, higher levies, and changes in Govt. Policies/laws of land, etc. may affect profitability of the Company.

Internal control system and their adequacy

The Company maintains adequate internal control systems, which provide reasonable assurance of recording the transactions of its
operations in all material respects and of providing protection against significant misuse or loss of Company assets and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, etc.

The adequacy of the same has been reported by the statutory auditors of your Company in their report.

Financial Performance

The performance of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 is summarized below:
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Financial Performance

The performance of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 is summarized below:
(Rs. in Lacs)

Balance Sheet As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

a. Property, Plant and Equipment 349.28 335.75

b. Right of use assets 1.94 2.04

c Capital Work-in-progress 149.38 172.85

d. Intangible assets 0.67 0.76

e. Financial assets 383.23 270.79

f. Deferred tax assets (net) 4.31 17.28

g. Other Non-current assets 1176.45 196.45

h. Current assets 4927.38 5,143.71

i. Non current assets held for sale - -

j. Total Equity 3760.59 3,455.10

k. Non- current liabilities 51.62 32.30

l. Current liabilities 3180.53 2,652.23

m. Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale - -

Summarized Profit and LossAccount
(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

Revenue from operations 13354.29 9556.04

Other Income 176.86 618.71

Profit/ (Loss) before Depreciation, Finance Cost, Exeptional items & Tax Expenses 452.30 673.00

Less: Depreciation 66.36 44.94

Profit/ (Loss) before Finance Cost, Exceptional Items and Tax Expenses 385.94 628.06

Less: Finance Cost 91.92 119.02

Profit/ (Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax Expenses 294.02 509.04

Add/ (Less): Exceptional items - (108.09)

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax Expenses 294.02 400.95

Less: Tax Expenses 84.78 129.96

Profit/ (Loss) after Taxation 209.24 270.99

Add/(Less): Other Comprehensive Income 96.25 (68.19)

Total Comprehensive Income 305.49 202.80

Balance brought forward from previous year 2758.21 2555.41

Amount available for appropriation 3063.70 2758.21

APPROPRIATION -- –

Amount Carried to Balance sheet 3063.70 2758.21

Paid Up Equity Share Capital 696.89 696.89

Earnings Per share (Rs.10/- each)
Basic & Diluted (in Rs.) 3.00 3.89
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Material development in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front

Your Company considers the quality of its human resources to be the most important asset and constantly endeavors to attract and
recruit best possible talent. Our training programs emphasize on general management perspective to business. The Company continues
to empower its people and provide a stimulating professional environment to its officers to excel in their respective functional disciplines.

The industrial relations of the Company continue to remain harmonious and cordial with focus on improving productivity and quality.

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31.03.2021 is 34.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOSANALYSIS

Details of key financial ratios are as follows:

S. No. Particulars FY 2021 FY 2020 Remarks

1 DEBTORS TURNOVER RATIO 7.80 4.63 Debtors turnover ratio increased due to higher sales

2 INVENTORYTURNOVER RATIO 16.66 12.86 Inventory turnover ratio also increased due to higher sales

3 INTEREST COVERAGE RATIO 6.72 8.80 Ratio decreased during the year due to lower profitability.

4 CURRENT RATIO 1.55 1.94 Current ratio decreased during the year due to increase
in current liabilities.

5 DEBT EQUITY RATIO 0.02 0.01 Increased during the year due to higher long tem debts.

6 OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN 2.89% 5.44% Decreased due to higher turnover during the year

7 NET PROFIT MARGIN 1.57% 2.84% Decreased due to higher turnover during the year

8 RETURN ON NET WORTH 5.56% 7.84% Decreased due to lower profitability during the year

Cautionary Statement

Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and
expectations may constitute “forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results might
differ materially from those either expressed or implied.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY

Your Company believes that the main aim of Corporate Governance is to achieve high level of transparency and accountability with all its
stakeholders together with meeting their aspirations. Also a Company cannot perform efficiently in the long run without respecting
interests of stakeholders and society as a whole.

In so far as compliance with the requirements of the Listing Agreement, Listing Regulations, the Company is in full compliance with the
norms and disclosures that have to be made on Corporate Governance format.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The number of independent directors is 60% of the total number of Directors. The number of non-executive Directors is 80% of the total
number of Directors.

None of the Directors is a Director in more than 10 Public Limited Companies or acts as an Independent Director in more than 7 Listed
Companies. None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5 Committees 
(Committees being, Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee), across all the Companies in which he/ she is a
Director.

The name and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings during the period and at the last Annual
General Meeting, No. of Directorship/ Committee Positions held in other Public Limited Companies, No. of shares held and Directorship
in other listed entities along with Category as on 31.03.2021 are given below:

A) COMPOSITIONAND CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS

Name of Category Attendance No. of Directorship/ Committee Positions held in
the Director other Public Limited Companies.

Board Last Directorship No. of Membership No. of Post of Chair-
AGM in Committee* person in Committee*

Mr. Yogender Whole-time 11 Yes 01 02 01 Nil SARTHAK
Mohan Sharma Director GLOBAL

LIMITED
(Independent
Director

Mr. Vijay Kumar Independent 09 Yes 01 02 02 Nil ANIK
Rathi Director INDUSTRIES

LIMITED
(Independent
Director)

Mr. Udesh Dassani Independent 06 Yes 02 02 02 Nil Nil
Director

Ms. DeepikaArora Non-Executive 09 No -- -- -- Nil Nil
Director

Mr. Nimishek Ved Independent 08 Yes -- -- -- Nil. Nil
Director

* Represents Chairmanships/Memberships of Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The membership count
include the count in which the director is Chairperson.

Relationship between directors interse

None of directors are related to any other director on the Board.

Familiarisation Programmes

The details of familiarisation programmes imparted to independent directors are available at the website of the Company at the link:
http://www.sarthakindustries.com/images/Familiarisation%20Programme-SIL.pdf.

Skills/expertise/Competence of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has identified the following skills/competencies for its effective functioning:

(a) Leadership and Management Strategy
(b) Sales, Marketing and International Business
(c) Corporate Governance and Disclosure
(d) Financial Literacy
(e) Social and EnvironmentalAccountability

Confirmation for Independent Directors

The Board of the Company confirms that all Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in Listing Regulations and are
independent of the Management.

Directorship
in other listed 
entities
(Category of 
Directorship)

No. of Shares
held by Non-
Executive
Director as on
31.03.21

SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED 2020-21

 S.No. Name of Director Expertise / Skill

  1. Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma Running Manufacturing units, Sales and Marketing, Liasioning, Leadership, 
Environmental Accountability

  2. Mr. Vijay Kumar Rathi Stock audits, Internal Audit, Tax and Regulatory reforms, Banking

  3. Mr. Udesh Dassani Accounts and audit, Corporate Finance, Banking

  4. Ms. Deepika Arora Finance and allied matters, Corporate Management, Corporate Governance

  5. Mr. Nimishek Ved Real Estate, Project Funding, Government projects, Strategic private equity 
investment, Risk Management
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B) BOARD PROCEDURE

During the financial year 2020-21, the Board of Directors met 13 times on the following dates: 10 June 2020, 31 July 2020, 31 August
th st th th nd th th

2020, 15 September 2020, 31 October 2020, 04 November 2020, 13 November 2020, 02 December 2020, 18 December 2020, 13
th th th

February 2021, 25 February 2021, 17 March 2021 and 27 March 2021. The gap between two meetings did not exceed one hundred
twenty days. The dates of meetings were generally decided in advance.

The Board has formulated a Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management of Company. It is hereby affirmed that all the
Directors and the senior management personnel have complied with the code.

The Company placed before the Board most of the information specified in Part A of Schedule II to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 from time to time. The Board periodically reviews compliance reports on all laws applicable
to the Company. The Company takes effective steps to rectify instances of noncompliance, if any.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Presently the Board has following committees:

A) AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company has an Audit Committee in line with the provisions of Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 177 of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

a) Members of Committee:
The Composition ofAudit Committee as on 31.03.2021 is as under:
Mr. Vijay Rathi : Chairman
Mr. Udesh Dassani : Member
Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma : Member

The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee.

b) Brief terms of reference:

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

2. Recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;
3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;
4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditors’ report thereon before submission to the board

for approval, with particular reference to:
i. Matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included in the board’s report in terms of

clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of theAct,
ii. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same,
iii. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management,
iv. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings,
v. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements,
vi. Disclosure of any related party transactions,
vii. Qualifications in the draft audit report.

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;
6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights

issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a
public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter;

7. Review and monitor the auditors’ independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;
9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;
11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;
13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and

seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;
14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;
15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or

irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board;
16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit

discussion to ascertain any area of concern;
17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of

non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;
18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;
19. Approval of appointment of CFO;
20. Establish a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns in such manner as may be prescribed;
21. To review the following information:

i. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;
ii. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by theAudit Committee), submitted by management;
iii. Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;
iv. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and
v. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief InternalAuditor.

th st st
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22. The Audit Committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internal control systems, the scope of audit, including the
observations of the auditors and review of financial statement before their submission to the Board and may also discuss any
related issues with the internal and statutory auditors and the management of the Company.

The terms of reference specified by the Board to the audit committee are as contained under Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 177 of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

th
c) Mr. Vijay Rathi, Chairman of theAudit Committee was present in previousAnnual General Meeting held on 28 September,

2020 to answer member’s queries.

d) Dates of theAudit Committee meetings and attendance:

The Committee met 6 (Six) times during the year on the following dates:
th st st th th th

10 June, 2020; 31 July 2020; 31 August, 2020; 15 September 2020; 13 November 2020 and 13 February 2021.
Mr. Vijay Rathi, Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma and Mr. Udesh Dassani have attended all the 6 (Six) meetings.

B) NOMINATIONAND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the terms of reference meet with the requirements of Regulation
19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

a) Members of Committee:
The Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on 31.03.2021 is as under:

Mr. Vijay Rathi : Chairman
Mr. Udesh Dassani : Member
Mr. Nimishek Ved : Member

b) Brief terms of reference:

1. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend
to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

2. To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

3. To carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance;

4. To devise a policy on Board diversity;

5. To identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

6. To recommend to the Board on remuneration payable to the Directors, Key managerial personnel and senior
management.

7. To ensure that level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient, relationship of remuneration to
performance is clear and meet appropriate performance benchmarks;

8. To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any statutory
notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable;

c) Dates of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings and attendance:

The Committee met 2 (Two) times during the year on the following dates:
st th

31 July 2020 and 27 March 2021.

Mr. Vijay Rathi and Mr. Nimishek Ved have attended all the 2 (Two) meetings. Mr. Udesh Dassani has attended 1 (One)
meeting.

d) The details relating to remuneration of Directors, as required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, have been given under a separate heading, viz. ‘DETAILS OF REMUNERATION TO
DIRECTORS’ in this report.

e) The Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes,
independence of a director and others matters is attached as “Annexure C” to the Board’s Report.

f) Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors:

The performance evaluation criteria for independent directors is determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
An indicative list of factors on which evaluation was carried out includes attendance, participation and contribution by a director,
commitment, effective deployment of knowledge and expertise, integrity and maintenance of confidentiality and independence
of behaviour and judgement.

C) STAKEHOLDERS’RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee has been constituted for redressal of investors complaint/grievances. The Committee's
primary responsibility is to implement a smooth share transfer process, minimize shareholders/investor grievances and to strengthen 
investor’s relation.
The composition of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and the terms of reference meet with the requirements of Regulation 20 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015 and provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

a) Members of Committee:

The Composition of Stakeholders’Relationship Committee as on 31.03.2021 is as under:

Mr. Vijay Rathi : Chairman
Mr. Udesh Dassani : Member
Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma : Member

b) Name and designation of compliance officer: Mr.Amit Jain, Company Secretary. (upto 16.03.2021)
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c) During the financial year 2020-2021, the committee held 4 (Four) meetings on following dates:
th st th th

10 June 2020; 31 August 2020; 13 November 2020 and 17 February 2021.
Mr. Vijay Rathi and Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma have attended all the 4 (Four) meetings. Mr. Udesh Dassani has attended 3
(Three) meetings.

d) No investor complaints were received during the financial year 2020-21. All valid share transfers received during the year
st

2020-21 have been acted upon by the Company and as on 31 March, 2021 there were Nil shares pending for transfer.

D) RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board of the Company has formed a Risk Management Committee to frame, implement and monitor the risk management plan
and policy of the Company. The Committee is responsible for reviewing the risk management plan and ensuring its effectiveness.

a) Members of Committee:
The Composition of Risk Management Committee as on 31.03.2021 is as under:

Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma : Chairman
Mr. Kailash KumarAgarwal : Member
Mr. Nimishek Ved : Member

th th
b) The Committee met two times during the year on 15 September, 2020 and 27 March, 2021.

Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma, Mr. Kailash KumarAgarwal and Mr. Nimishek Ved have attended all the 2 (Two) meetings.

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS

A. REMUNERATION TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The particulars of remuneration of executive director during the financial year 2020-21 are as under:
(Rs. in Lacs)

Name Designation Salary Perquisites Total

Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma Whole-time Director 10.65 - 10.65

st
As on 31 March, 2021, Non executive Directors were holding Nil Shares of the Company.

B. REMUNERATION TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for every meeting of the Board and/or Committee attended by them. No commission
was paid or payable to the Non-Executive Directors during the financial year 2020-21.
The sitting fees paid to all Non-Executive Directors for attending meetings of the Board and/or Committee thereof for the year ended
31.03.2021 is as follows:- Mr. Vijay Rathi – Rs. 0.15 Lacs, Mr. Udesh Dassani – Rs. 0.11 Lacs , Mr. Nimishek Ved Rs. 0.10 Lacs and Ms.
DeepikaArora– Rs. 0.09 Lacs.

Service Contracts, Severance Fees and Notice Period
th

Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma, who was appointed as whole-time director of the Company for a period of 5 years w.e.f. 15 July, 2014, has
th

been re-appointed as whole-time director of the company in theAnnual general Meeting of the Company held on 27 September, 2019 for
th

a further period of 3 years w.e.f. 15 July, 2019.
The appointment of the Executive Directors is governed by Resolutions passed by the Shareholders of the Company, which cover the
terms and conditions of such appointment, read with the service rules of the Company. A separate Service Contract is not entered into by
the Company with Executive Directors. No notice period or severance fee is payable to any Director.

Stock Option details
The Company has not granted any stock option to any of its director/employees.

SEPARATE MEETINGS OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
During the year under review, one meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 20.01.2021, without the attendance of Executive
Directors and members of management.All the Independent Directors were present in that meeting.

The Independent Directors in the said meeting had, inter-alia:
i. Reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole;
ii. Reviewed the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-

executive directors;
iii. Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board that is

necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.
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GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Annual General Meetings
The last threeAnnual General Meetings of the Company were held as under:

YEAR VENUE DATE TIME SPECIAL
RESOLUTION PASSED

rd
2017-18 Room No. 4,Anna Bhuvan, 3 Floor, 24/09/2018 01.00 p.m. Special Resolution passed for re-appointment

87C Devji Ratansi Marg, Dana Bunder, of Mr. Vijay Rathi and Mr. Udesh Dassani as
Mumbai- (MH) – 400 009 Independent Directors of the Company.

rd
2018-19 Room No. 4,Anna Bhuvan, 3 Floor, 27/09/2019 01:00 p.m. Special Resolution passed for re-appointment

87C Devji Ratansi Marg, Dana Bunder, of Mr. Yogendra Mohan Sharma as
Mumbai- (MH) – 400 009 Wholetime Directors of the Company.

2019-20 Annual General Meeting Held through 28/09/2020 05.00 p.m. No special resolution passed
VC/OAVM . The registered office of the
company was deemed to be the venue
of theAGM

Extra-ordinary General Meeting
During the financial year 2020-21, no Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company was held.

Postal Ballot
No postal ballot was conducted during the year under review.At present, there is no proposal for passing any Special Resolution through
Postal Ballot.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATIONS

The quarterly and yearly financial results of the Company are published in the newspapers namely Free Press Journal & Navshakti (both
Mumbai editions). The Company has a website, namely www.sarthakindustries.com for displaying its results.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

Date, Time & Venue of theAnnual General Meeting

th
Day and Date: Wednesday, 15 September, 2021 at 5:00 p.m.
Venue: The Company is conducting meeting through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) pursuant to MCA
Circulars. For details, please refer Notice of thisAGM.
The proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at the registered office of the Company situated at Room No. 4, Anna

rd
Bhuvan, 3 Floor, 87C Devji Ratansi Marg, Dana Bunder
Mumbai (MH) - 400 009, which shall be the deemed venue ofAGM.

Financial Year
st st

01 April, 2020 – 31 March, 2021

Dividend Payment Date
No Dividend was recommended by the Board of the Directors for financial 2020-21.

Financial Calendar
Financial Reporting (tentative) for Quarter ending

June 30, 2021 - August, 2021
September 30, 2021 - November, 2021
December 31, 2021 - February, 2022
March 31, 2022 - May, 2022

Date of book closure
th th

06 September, 2021 to 15 September, 2021 (Both days inclusive)

Listing on Stock Exchanges
The BSE Ltd. (BSE)

th
25 Floor, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400001

Listing fees
Paid to the BSE Limited (BSE) for the financial year 2020-21.

Company's Code / Symbol / Series on Stock Exchange
The BSE Ltd.: (Stock Code: 531930)

Electronic connectivity
The National Security Depository Ltd. & the Central Depository Services (India) Ltd.

ISIN No. at NSDL / CDSL
INE 074 H01012

Market Price Data
st st

The monthly high & low share prices of the Company traded at the Bombay Stock Exchange from 1 April, 2020 to 31 March, 2021 are
given below:
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Month The Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.

Month High Price (Rs.) Month Low Price (Rs.)

April-20 --- —

May-20 --- —

June-20 – -–

July-20 7.94 7.94

August-20 7.65 7.55

September-20 8.00 8.00

October-20 --- —

November-20 --- —

December-20 8.40 8.40

January-21 10.20 8.82

February-21 10.71 10.71

March -21 11.24 11.24

Share Price Performance in comparison to BSE Sensex as on March 31, 2021

Suspension of Securities
Nil

Share Transfer Agent (Transfer in physical/electronic form and other related correspondence)
Sarthak Global Limited 
170/10, R.N.T. Marg, Film Colony, Indore,
(M.P.) – 452 001; Tel : + 91- 731- 2523545
Fax: + 91-731- 2526388; Email: sgl@sarthakglobal.com
Website: www.sarthakglobal.com
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Share transfer system
The Registrar & Share Transfer Agent M/s. Sarthak Global Ltd. deals with share transfer both in physical and dematerialized mode. The
dematerialized (demat) shares are transferable through the depository system. Shares in physical form are processed by the Registrar &
Share Transfer Agent and approved by the Share Transfer Committee of Directors of the Company. Transfer of physical shares is made
within the time stipulated by stock exchange.

Nodal Officer (For the purpose of IEPF)

Name : Riya Bhandari, Company Secretary
Email address : sarthak@sarthakindustries.com

st
Distribution of Equity Shareholding and its pattern as on 31 March, 2021

Distribution of Equity Shareholding 31.03.2021

Share Class No. of Equity Shares

No. of Shares No. of No. of shares Share-
Holders held holding %

Up to 500 446 165026 2.37

501-1000 150 123891 1.78

1001-2000 16 22488 0.32

2001-3000 9 23149 0.33

3001-4000 2 6650 0.09

4001-5000 2 9100 0.13

5001-10000 2 14991 0.22

10001 and above 29 6603555 94.76

Total 656 69,68,850 100.00

Shareholding Pattern

Category No. of Shareholding
Shares  %

Promoters 25,33,771 36.36

Domestic 30,76,628 44.15
Corporate Bodies

Indian Public 8,91,876 12.80

NRIs/OCBs/FIIs 4,66,575 6.69

Total 69,68,850 100.00

Dematerialization of shares and Liquidity
The Company’s shares are traded compulsorily in demat mode under ISIN code INE 074 H01012. The National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) and the Central Depository Services Ltd. (CDSL) are the depositories, holding Company’s share in demat mode. As on

st
31 March, 2021 out of 69,68,850 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, 57,22,815 equity shares which is 82.12% of total equity are now held in
electronic form.

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity
There are no outstanding GDRs/ADRs / Warrants / Convertible instruments of the Company and hence, the same is not applicable to the
Company.

Commodity price risks or Foreign Exchange risk and hedging activities:
The management of the Company takes effective steps timely to minimise commodity price risks and also hedges its exposure.

Plant Location
LPG Cylinder Unit, Pithampur IndustrialArea,
VillageAkoliya, District Dhar, (M.P.)
Phone: 07292-296766

Address for Correspondence

Sarthak Industries Limited
rd

Room No. 4,Anna Bhuvan, 3 Floor,
87C Devji Ratansi Marg, Dana Bunder
Mumbai (MH) - 400 009
Tel. No.: +91- 22- 23486740
Email: sarthakindustries@yahoo.in

List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during the relevant financial year, for all debt
instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or proposal of the listing entity involving
mobilization of funds, whether in India or abroad
Credit rating obtained along with revisions thereto for bank facilities of the Company during FY 2020-21 as under:

S. No. RatingAgency Facilities Credit Rating

1. CARE Ratings Ltd. Long term Bank Facilities CARE BB ; Stable/CareA4 (Double B)

2. CARE Ratings Ltd. Short term Bank Facilities CAREA4 (AFour)

No change in the Credit Rating during the financial year 2020-21.
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OTHER DISCLOSURES

a. Materially Significant Related Party Transactions:All transactions entered into with related parties under Regulation 23 of the Listing
Regulations, during the year under review were on Arm’s Length basis and in the ordinary course of Business. There are no
materially significant related party transactions of the company which have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at
large. Further, the particulars of transactions between the Company and its related parties in accordance with the IndianAccounting
Standards (INDAS) are set out in Note No. 44 of Standalone Financial Statements forming part of the annual report.

b. Details of non-compliance by the Company, fine, and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI, or any
statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years: The Company has complied with the
requirements of the regulatory authorities on capital markets and no penalties have been imposed against it in the last three years.

c. Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy: The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary Vigil
Mechanism for employees and directors to report concerns about unethical behavior. No person has been denied access to the audit
committee.

d. Compliance with mandatory / Non-mandatory requirements: The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements as
stipulated under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the status of non-mandatory
(discretionary) requirements are given below:
i) Chairman is elected in Meeting;
ii) In view of publication of the Financial Results of the Company in newspapers having wide circulation and dissemination of the 

same on the website of the Company as well as on the website of the Stock Exchanges, the Company does not consider it prudent
to circulate the half-yearly results separately to the Shareholders;

iii) The Company’s Financial Statements for financial year 2020-21 have been accompanied with unmodified audit opinion - both on
quarterly and yearly basis;

iv)The Chairman is elected in Meeting. No Managing Director in the Company; and
v) The Company has appointed an InternalAuditor in accordance with the provisions of Section 138 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 who

reports to the Audit Committee. Quarterly internal audit reports are submitted to the Audit Committee which reviews the audit
reports and suggests necessary action.

e. Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed:
http://www.sarthakindustries.com/images/Policy%20for%20determining%20Material%20Subsidiary.pdf

f. Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed:
http://www.sarthakindustries.com/images/Related_Party_Policy.pdf

g. Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities:
The management of the Company takes effective steps timely to minimise commodity price risks and also hedges its exposure.

h. Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified under Regulation
32(7A)

NotApplicable

i. A certificate from practicing company secretary confirming that none of the Directors on the board of the Company were debarred or
disqualified from being re-appointed under retirement by rotation and/or continuing as Directors of the Company by the SEBI,
Ministry of CorporateAffairs or any other statutory authorities Attached as ‘Annexure I’

j. Details of Fees paid to StatutoryAuditors - SMAK & Co., CharteredAccountants

StatutoryAudit Fees – Rs. 1.50 Lacs
TaxAudit Fees – Rs. 0.50 Lacs
Other Services – Rs. 0.75 Lacs

k. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)Act, 2013
No. of Complaints filed during the financial year – NIL
No. of Complaints disposed of during the financial year – NIL
No. of Complaints pending as on end of the financial year – NIL

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of
sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, to the extent as applicable, with regards to Corporate Governance.

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATE
In terms of regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, the Managing Director & CEO and the CFO made a certification to the Board of
Directors in the prescribed format for the year at the review, which has been reviewed by theAudit Committees and taken on record by the
Board. The same is attached as ‘Annexure II’.

CEO CERTIFICATION
The Certificate from CEO as required under Part D of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations containing declaration as to affirming
compliance with the Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and Senior Management attached as Annexure III.

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Certificate from M/s. Ajit Jain & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, confirming compliances with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated under the Listing Regulations attached as ‘Annexure IV.’.

DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSEACCOUNT/ UNCLAIMED SUSPENSEACCOUNT
NotApplicable

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITALAUDIT
A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit to reconcile the total Admitted Capital with
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total Issued and Listed
Capital. The audit confirms that the total Issued/ Paid-up Capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical forms and the
total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDLand CDSL.
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Annexure I

CERTIFICATE ON NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
[pursuant to clause 10 (i) of the Part C of Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended]

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Sarthak Industries Limited
rd

having CIN L99999MH1982PLC136834 and having registered office at ROOM NO. 4,ANNABHUVAN, 3 FLOOR, 87C DEVJI RATANSI
MARG, DANA BUNDER, MUMBAI MH 400009 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

st
I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31 March, 2021
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Companies by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India, Ministry of CorporateAffairs, or any such other StatutoryAuthority.

  S. No. Name of Director DIN Designation

1. YOGENDER MOHAN SHARMA 03644480 Whole-time Director

2. UDESH DASSANI 00511709 Independent Director

3. VIJAY KUMAR RATHI 01474776 Independent Director

4. NIMISHEK VED 07362817 Independent Director

5. DEEPIKA ARORA 07117491 Non-Executive Director

Place: Indore For Ajit Jain & Company
th

Date: 14 August, 2021 (Company Secretary)

Ajit Jain
Proprietor

FCS No.: 3933; C P No.: 2876
UDIN -  F003933C000785714

Peer Review Certificate No.: 767/2020
PCS Unique ID NO. : S1998MP023400

Annexure II
CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

To
The Board of Directors,
Sarthak Industries Ltd.

In relation to theAudited FinancialAccounts of the Company as at March 31, 2021, we hereby certify that:
(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2021 and that to the best of

our knowledge and belief:

(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading;

(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended March
31, 2021, which is fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct.

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have evaluated the
effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors
and theAudit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the
steps have taken or proposed to be taken to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the auditors and theAudit committee, wherever applicable:

(i) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements; and

(iii) Instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or
an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system over financial reporting.

YOGENDER MOHAN SHARMA
Whole-time Director

DIN: 03644480

Place: Indore KAILASH KUMARAGARWAL
th

Dated: 30 June, 2021 CFO
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Annexure III

Declaration on Compliance of Code of Conduct
The Board members & senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct for the directors & senior

st
management for the year ended 31 March, 2021.

For Sarthak Industries Limited

Place: Indore YOGENDER MOHAN SHARMA
th

Dated: 14 August, 2021 Whole-time Director
DIN: 03644480

Annexure IV

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members of
SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED

1. We have examined the compliances of conditions of corporate governance by Sarthak Industries Limited (‘CIN:
L99999MH1982PLC136834) for the year ended March 31, 2021 as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of
Regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”).

Management’s Responsibility

2. The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. This responsibility includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedure to ensure the compliance with the conditions of the
Corporate Governance stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Our Responsibility

3. Our examination was limited to a review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring
compliance to the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements
of the Company.

4. We have examined the books, papers, minutes books, forms, returns and other relevant records and documents maintained by the
company for the purpose of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the
Company.

Opinion

5. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided to us and the
representations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI
Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2021

6. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the representations made by the
Directors and the management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for the year ended on March 31, 2021.

7. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Indore For Ajit Jain & Company
th

Date: 14 August, 2021 (Company Secretary)

Ajit Jain
Proprietor

FCS No.: 3933; C P No.: 2876
UDIN -  F003933C000785780

Peer Review Certificate No.: 767/2020
PCS Unique ID NO. : S1998MP023400
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Independent Auditors Report

To,
The Members of
Sarthak Industries Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Sarthak Industries Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st
March 2021, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31 March, 2021, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards onAuditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the CompaniesAct, 2013.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in theAuditor’s Responsibilities for theAudit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

KeyAudit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

st

KeyAudit Matters

Evaluation of uncertain tax positions

The Company operates in multiple jurisdictions and is
subject to periodic challenges by local tax authorities on a
range of tax matters during the normal course of business 
including direct and indirect tax matters. These involve
significant management judgment to determine the
possible outcome of the uncertain tax positions,
consequently having an impact on related accounting and
disclosures in the financial statements.

Auditor’s Response
Our audit procedures include the following substantive procedures:

• Obtained understanding of key uncertain tax positions;

and

• We along with our internal tax experts –

• Read and analysed select key correspondences, external
legal opinions / consultations by management for key
uncertain tax positions;

• Discussed with appropriate senior management and
evaluated management’s underlying key assumptions in
estimating the tax provisions;

and

Assessed management’s estimate of the possible outcome of the
disputed cases
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Information Other than the Financial Statements andAuditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report,
Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards (IndAS) specified under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for theAudit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

a. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of theAct, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of
sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of theAct, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with theAccounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
theAct, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2021 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31  March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164 (2) of theAct.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements –
Refer Note 34(A) to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long term contract including derivative contract for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

h. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16) of the Act, In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during
the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to theAct.

For SMAK & Co.
CharteredAccountants
(Firm Reg. No. 020120C)

CA Atishay Khasgiwala
Partner

Date: M. No. 417866
Place: Indore
UDIN : 21417866AAAACV3255

st

st

th
30 June, 2021

(35)

SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED 2020-21



(36)

Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report

Referred to in paragraph (1) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even
date to the members of Sarthak Industries Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021.

i. In respect of its FixedAssets :

a. The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets.

b. The company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a phased manner which in our
opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program,
certain fixed assets were physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies have
been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

ii. In respect of its Inventories:

The inventories has been physically verified by the Management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification
is reasonable and no material discrepancies were noticed.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loan secured or unsecured to
company, firm, LLP or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the CompaniesAct, 2013. In our
opinion the provisions of para 3 (iii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions
of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans given and investments made. The company has not given any
guarantee or provided any security in terms of section 185 and 186 of theAct.

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted deposits from
the public within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and the Rules,
framed there under. As informed to us no Order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law
Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other Tribunal.

vi. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie the
prescribed records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii. In respect of Statutory dues :

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our
opinion the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee’s
state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, cess and any other statutory dues as applicable
with the appropriate authorities. There were no undisputed statutory dues in arrears, as at 31 March, 2021 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the dues of sales tax and income tax which have not been
deposited with appropriate authorities on account of any dispute are as follows :

st

st

Name of the Statute Nature of
Dues Involved amount relates dispute is pending

Rs. In lacs  # FY

Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 Sales Tax 1.22 2009-10 MP Commercial Tax
Appellate Board

Bombay Sales Tax Act, 1959 Sales Tax 8.39 1998-99 High Court, Mumbai.

Bombay Sales Tax Act, 1959 Sales Tax 39.35 2001-02 Maharashtra Sales Tax
Tribunal, Mumbai.

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 623.68 2010-11 & CIT (Appeal)
2011-12

Amount Period to which Forum where
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# Net of amount deposited Rs. 155.40 lacs.

viii. According to the records of the company examined by us and as per the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowings to a financial institution, bank or government as on
the balance sheet date. The Company has not issued any debenture.

ix. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised money by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the term loan raised during the year applied for the purpose it was raised..

x. According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best of our knowledge, no material fraud by the
Company or on the company by the officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

xi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has paid / provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to theAct.

xii. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company is not a Nidhi Company therefore,
the provision of para 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of theAct where applicable
and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards (IndAS).

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company,
the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year, therefore the provision of para 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not entered into any 
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him during the year, hence the provision of para 3 (xv)
of the Order is not applicable to the company.

xvi. The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 therefore, the
provision of para 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the company for the year under audit.

For SMAK & Co.
CharteredAccountants
(Firm Reg. No. 020120C)

CA Atishay Khasgiwala
Partner

Date: M. No. 417866
Place: Indore
UDIN : 21417866AAAACV3255

th
30 June, 2021
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Annexure B To the IndependentAuditor's Report of even date on the Financial Statements of Sarthak Industries Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“theAct”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sarthak Industries Limited (“the Company”) as of March
31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

Auditors’Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For SMAK & Co.
CharteredAccountants
(Firm Reg. No. 020120C)

CA Atishay Khasgiwala
Partner

Date: M. No. 417866
Place: Indore
UDIN :21417866AAAACV3255

th
30 June, 2021
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As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
For SMAK & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN 020120C) Yogender Mohan Sharma Nimishek Ved

Whole Time Director Director
DIN: 03644480 DIN: 07362817

CA Atishay Khasgiwala
Partner
M. No. : 417866 CS Riya Bhandari CA Kailash K Agarwal
Place : Indore Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Dated : June 30, 2021
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SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L99999MH1982PLC136834

ST
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31  MARCH, 2021

(Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars Note No. As at As at
st st

31  March, 2021  31  March, 2020

I. ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 349.38 335.75
(b) Right-of-use assets 2 1.94 2.04
(c) Capital work-in-progress 3 149.38 172.85
(d) Intangible Assets 4 0.67 0.76
(e) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 5 314.35 201.73
(ii) Loans 6 55.83 56.18
(iii) Other financial assets 7 13.05 12.88

(f) Deferred tax assets (net) 8 4.31 17.28
(g) Other non-current assets 9 1176.45 196.45

Total Non-Current Assets 2065.36 995.92
(2) Current Assets

(a) Inventories 10 935.64 667.79
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivables 11 1375.80 2049.30
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 86.49 247.49
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 13 281.20 276.05
(iv) Loans 14 972.55 829.44
(v) Other financial assets 15 51.37 395.00

(c) Other current assets 16 1224.33 678.64

Total Current Assets 4927.38 5143.71

TOTAL ASSETS 6992.74 6139.63
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity

(a) Equity share capital 17 696.89 696.89
(b) Other equity 18 3063.70 2758.21

Total Equity 3760.59 3455.10
(2) Liabilities
(2.1) Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 19 48.17 28.92

(b) Provisions 20 3.45 3.38

Total Non-Current Liabilities 51.62 32.30
(2.2) Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables 21
(a) total outstanding due of micro and small
     enterprises 0.00 0.00
(b) total outstanding due of creditors other than
micro and small enterprises 1805.74 1353.43
(ii) Other financial liabilities 22 281.65 455.94

(b) Other current liabilities 23 1021.61 775.57
(c) Provisions 24 1.69 1.65
(d) Current Tax Liabilities 25 69.84 65.64

Total Current Liabilities 3180.53 2652.23

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6992.74 6139.63

Notes forming an integral part of the financial statements 1 to 49
General corporate information and Significant Accounting
Policies A-B
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SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L99999MH1982PLC136834

ST
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021

(Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars Note No. As at As at
st st

31  March, 2021  31  March, 2020

I. INCOME
a. Revenue from operations 26 13354.29 9556.04
b. Other income 27 176.86 618.71

Total Income 13531.15 10174.75
II. EXPENSES

a. Cost of materials consumed 28 1567.23 1000.97
b. Purchases of stock-in-trade 29 10871.86 7555.66
c. Changes in inventories of finished
    goods, work in progress and stock-in-trade 30 (308.83) 161.28
d. Employee benefits expense 31 260.10 255.12
e. Finance costs 32 91.92 119.02
f.  Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,2 & 4 66.36 44.94
g. Other expenses 33 688.49 528.72

Total Expenses 13237.13 9665.71

III. Profit before exceptional items and tax (I-II) 294.02 509.04
IV. Exceptional Items 0.00 108.09
V. Profit before tax (III - IV) 294.02 400.95
VI. Tax expense: 46

a. Current tax 85.37 112.58
b. Deferred tax (0.57) 6.04
c. Income tax for earlier year (0.02) 11.34

84.78 129.96

VII. Profit for the year (V - VI) 209.24 270.99
VIII. Other comprehensive income
A. Items that will not to be reclassified to Profit or Loss

-Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (2.86) 0.00
-Tax impact thereon 0.80 0.00
-Gain/(Loss) on change in fair value of equity instruments 112.64 (78.21)
-Tax impact thereon (14.33) 10.02
(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 0.00 0.00

B. Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss 0.00 0.00

Total other comprehensive income 96.25 (68.19)

IX. Total Comprehensive Income (VII+VIII) 305.49 202.80
X. Earning per equity share: (Face value of Rs 10/- each ) 38

(1) Basic (in Rs.) 3.00 3.89
(2) Diluted (in Rs.) 3.00 3.89

Notes forming part of the financial statements 1 to 49

General coprporate information and
significant accounting policies A-B

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
For SMAK & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN 020120C) Yogender Mohan Sharma Nimishek Ved

Whole Time Director Director
DIN: 03644480 DIN: 07362817

CA Atishay Khasgiwala
Partner
M. No. : 417866 CS Riya Bhandari CA Kailash K Agarwal
Place : Indore Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Dated : June 30, 2021
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SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L99999MH1982PLC136834

ST
 CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021

(Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
st st

31  March, 2021  31  March, 2020

A. Cash flow from Operating activities
a.  Net Profit/ (Loss) before Tax & Exceptional item 294.02 400.95

Adjustment for :
Depreciation 66.36 44.94
Finance costs 91.92 119.02
Interest Received (123.53) (113.41)
Depreciation reversed on capital subsidy (11.44) 0.00
Loss / (Profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.00 (453.29)
Provision for doubtful debts written back (4.41) (27.28)
Ind AS Impact of Remeasurment Directly considered in OCI (2.86) 0.00
Unrealised (gain)/loss on foreign currency exchange rate (11.35) 33.76

b.  Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 298.71 4.69
Adjustment for :
Trade and Other receivables 335.06 (380.44)
Inventories (267.84) 150.05
Trade and other payables 518.80 (1906.33)

c.  Cash generated from Operations 884.73 (2132.03)
Direct Taxes (paid)/Refund (81.18) (194.85)

Net Cash Flow from Operating activities 803.55 (2326.88)

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1063.29) (234.82)
Sale of Tangible property, plant and equipment 0.00 2975.77
Capital subsidy received 38.45 0.00
Interest Received 124.56 117.85
Change in Bank balances not considered as cash and cash Equivalent (7.02) (42.29)

Net Cash Flow from Investing activities (907.30) 2816.51

C. Cash flow from Financing activities
Proceeds from Borrowings 55.00 30.00
Repayment of Borrowings (20.33) (274.63)
Finance costs (91.92) (119.02)

Net Cash flow from Financing activities (57.25) (363.65)

D. Net Increase / ( Decrease)in Cash and Cash Equivalent (161.00) 125.98

Cash and Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year 247.49 121.51
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year 86.49 247.49

Cash and Cash Equivalent comprises of
i. Balances with Banks 81.68 244.38
   in Current Accounts 5.62 145.23
   in Deposit Accounts 76.06 99.15
ii. Cash on hand 4.81 3.11

86.49 247.49

Previous period/year figures have been regrouped/recasted wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
For SMAK & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN 020120C) Yogender Mohan Sharma Nimishek Ved

Whole Time Director Director
DIN: 03644480 DIN: 07362817

CA Atishay Khasgiwala
Partner
M. No. : 417866 CS Riya Bhandari CA Kailash K Agarwal
Place : Indore Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Dated : June 30, 2021
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ST
NOTES  FORMING  PART  OF  THE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS  FOR  THE YEAR  ENDED  31   MARCH,  2021

A. General Information

Sarthak Industries Ltd. (CIN: L99999MH1982PLC136834) (Formerly known as Avanti LPG (India) Ltd.) and initially known as (Malav
Metals Pvt. Ltd.) is a public limited company incorporated on 23.12.1982 having registered office at Room no. 4, 87-C Devji Ratansi
Marg, Dana Bunder, Mumbai-09, (Mah.). The Company is engaged in manufacturing of LPG Cylinders at works situated at Industrial 
Area, Pithampur, Dist. Dhar (M.P.). The LPG Cylinders are supplied to Oil Companies like Indian Oil Corporation Ltd., Hindustan
Petroleum Corporation Ltd. and Bharat Petroleum Corporation Ltd. and also to private companies. Apart from this, Company is also
engaged in trading of agri-commodities, mining and mineral based industry on opportunity basis. The Company is listed with the BSE
Limited (BSE).

B. Significant accounting policies

i. Statement of compliance

The separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IndianAccounting standards (“IndAS”) notified, under section
133 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the rules notified under the relevant provisions of theAct.

ii. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost convention except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies mentioned
below.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set
out in Schedule III to the CompaniesAct, 2013. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current
and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

Functional and presentation currency

These separate financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency.All amounts have been
rounded to the nearest Rupees in lacs unless otherwise indicated.

iii. Use of Estimates, Judgments andAssumptions

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.Actual
results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have significant effect on amount
recognized in the financial statements are:

i. Allowance for bad and doubtful trade receivable.
ii. Recognition and measurement of provision and contingencies.
iii. Depreciation/Amortisation and useful lives of Property, plant and equipment / IntangibleAssets.
iv. Recognition of deferred tax.
v. Income Taxes.
vi. Measurement of defined benefit obligation.
vii. Impairment of Non-financial assets and financial assets.

iv. Revenue

Recognition

The company recognised revenue i.e. account for a contract with a customer only when all of the following criteria are met:

(a) the parties to the contract have approved the contract (in writing, orally or in accordance with other customary business practices)
and are committed to perform their respective obligations;

(b) the entity can identify each party’s rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred;

(c) the entity can identify the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred;

(d) the contract has commercial substance (ie the risk, timing or amount of the entity’s future cash flows is expected to change as a 
result of the contract); and

(e) it is probable that the entity will collect the consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for the goods or services that will be
transferred to the customer. In evaluating whether collectability of an amount of consideration is probable, an entity shall consider
only the customer’s ability and intention to pay that amount of consideration when it is due. The amount of consideration to which the
entity will be entitled may be less than the price stated in the contract if the consideration is variable because the entity may offer the
customer a price concession.

Measurement

When (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, company recognise as revenue the amount of the transaction price (which excludes
estimates of variable consideration that are constrained) that is allocated to that performance obligation.

The transaction price is the amount that the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a
customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, goods and service tax). The consideration promised may
include fixed amounts, variable amounts, or both.
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a. Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control
is transferred to the customer which is usually on dispatch / delivery of goods, based on contracts with the customers. Revenue is
measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, price concessions, incentives, and
returns, if any, as specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the
government. Due to the short nature of credit period given to customers, there is no financing component in the contract.

b. Sale of Services

Revenue from services rendered is recognised as the services are rendered and is booked based on agreements/arrangements with the
concerned parties.

c. Interest and Dividend

Interest income is recognized on accrual basis using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the
date on which the company’s right to receive payment is established.

v. Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value on FIFO basis, except by-product/scrap is valued at net realizable value.
Cost of inventory is generally comprises of cost of purchases, cost of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

vi. Property, Plant and Equipment

a. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses (if
any). Freehold land is measured at costs.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase
taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, acquisition or construction cost including borrowing costs, any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management, initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

b. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to
the company and the costs of the assets can be reliably measured.

c. Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using Written down value method (WDV) on depreciable amount as per the
useful life of the assets in the manner as specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The estimated useful life of assets and 
estimated residual value is taken as prescribed under Schedule II to the CompaniesAct, 2013.

Depreciation on additions during the year is provided on pro rata basis with reference to date of addition/installation. Depreciation on 
assets disposed/discarded is charged up to the date on which such asset is sold.

The estimated useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each balance sheet date, any changes
therein are considered as changes in estimate and accordingly accounted for prospectively.

d. Capital Work In progress

Assets under erection/installation are shown as "Capital work in progress", Expenditure during construction period are shown as "pre-
operative expenses" to be capitalized on erection/installations of the assets.

vii. IntangibleAssets

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the
Company and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Recognition and measurement

Computer softwares have finite useful life and are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to
the company and the costs of the assets can be reliably measured. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands, when incurred is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives and is generally recognised in statement of profit or loss. Computer software are amortised over their
estimated useful life of 3years.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, if required.
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viii. Employee benefits

a. Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided.A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid

if the company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and

the obligation can be estimated reliably.

b. Defined benefit plans

The company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of GratuityAct 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a

period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The Company has opted for scheme with Life Insurance Corporation of India ( "LIC" ) to cover its

liabilities towards employees gratuity. The annual premium paid to LIC is charged to Profit and Loss Account. The Company also carries

out Actuarial valuation of gratuity using Projected Unit Credit Method as required by Ind As - 19 and the difference between fair value of

plan assets and liability as per actuarial valuation as at the year end is recognized in statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on

the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit

liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the

period in which they occur. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) recognised in other comprehensive income shall

not be reclassified to profit or loss in a subsequent period.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

• Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs; and

• Net interest expense or income

c. Other employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders

the related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of obligation as at the Balance sheet date determined based on an

actuarial valuation.

d. Defined Contribution Plan

The company’s payments to the defined contribution plans are recognized as expenses during the period in which the employees

perform the services that payment covers. Defined contribution plan comprise of contribution to the employees’ provident fund with

government, Employees’State Insurance and Pension Scheme.

ix. Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to other

comprehensive income or a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity.

a. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax

payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and

b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements

and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all

deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible

temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or

the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future

economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax

asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with

the asset will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same

taxable entity.
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x. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the

reporting date. Difference arising on settlement of monetary items are recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent of

exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency borrowings that are directly attributable

to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets which are capitalized as cost of assets..

Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded using the exchange rates at the date

of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the

functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Exchange difference arising out of these transactions are

generally recognised in statement of profit and loss.

xi. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset are capitalised as part of

the cost of that asset till the date it is ready for its intended use or sale. Qualifying asset are the assets that necessarily takes a substantial

period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

xii. Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent includes the cash and Cheques in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with bank and other short term,

highly liquid investments with original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which

are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Bank overdraft are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet and forms part of financing activities in the cash flow

statement. Book overdraft are shown within other financial liabilities in the balance sheet and forms part of operating activities in the cash

flow statement.

xiii. Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effect of transactions of non-cash

nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with

investing or financing cash flow. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the company is segregated based on

the available information.

xiv. Earning Per Share

a.  Basic earnings per shares is arrived at based on net profit / (loss)  after tax available to equity shareholders divided  by Weighted

average number of equity shares , adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year (if any) and excluding treasury

shares.

b. Diluted earnings per shares is calculated by dividing Profit attributable to equity holders after tax divided by Weighted average number

of shares considered for basic earning per shares including potential dilutive equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are

adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the

outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a

later date. Potential ordinary shares shall be treated as dilutive when, and only when, their conversion to ordinary shares would decrease

earnings per share or increase loss per share from continuing operations.

xv. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and ContingentAssets

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an 

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized

because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be

measured with sufficient reliability. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial

statements

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are not recognized,

but its existence is disclosed in the financial statements

xvi. SegmentAccounting

The company has disclosed business segment as the primary segment. Based on the criteria mentioned in Ind AS 108 “Operating

Segment” the company has identified its reportable segments. The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the company’s

performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by operating segments. The CODM

reviews revenue and gross profit as performance indicator for all of the operating segments. The various segment identified by the

company comprised as under:
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Name of Segment

LPG Cylinders - Manufacturing and repairing of LPG cylinders

Merchant Trading - Trading of various commodities, materials etc.

By products related to each segment have been included in respective segment.

Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets and segment liabilities include respective amounts directly identified with the

segment and also an allocation on reasonable basis of amounts not directly identified. The expenses which are not directly relatable to

the business segment are shown as unallocable corporate cost. Assets and liabilities that can not be allocated are shown as unallocable

corporate assets and liabilities respectively.

xvii. Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange

for consideration.

As per the requirements of Ind AS 116 the company evaluates whether an arrangement qualifies to be a lease. In identifying a lease the

company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to

extent the lease if the company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the

Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-

cancellable period of a lease.

Company as a lessee

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the contract

and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease

component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Right of UseAssets

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease

commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of

the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus

any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or

restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located.

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any 

and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the

commencement date over the lease term. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their

carrying amounts may not be recoverable and impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Company has recognised lease hold land as right of use asset and depreciated over its lease term.

Lease Liability

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the

lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate

cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the

Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing

rate for the portfolio as a whole.

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the 

carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease

modifications. The company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to the

right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-

use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any

remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of

12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are

recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Operating leases

The Company has also used the practical expedient provided by the standard when applying Ind AS 116 to leases previously classified

as operating leases under Ind AS 17 and therefore, has not reassessed whether a contract, is or contains a lease, at the date of initial

application, relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous, applying Ind AS 37 immediately before the date of initial application

as an alternative to performing an impairment review, excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use asset at the date of

initial application and used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Company has used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

On transition, the Company recognised a lease liability measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments. The right-of-use

asset is recognised at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement of the lease, but discounted 

using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as at April 1, 2019.
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Company as a lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. The Company 

recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance

lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net

investment in the lease. If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue from

contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

The Company is not required to make any adjustments on transition to IndAS 116 for leases in which it acts as a lessor.

xviii. Impairment of Non-FinancialAssets

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non-financial asset or a group of non-

financial assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the company estimates the amount of impairment loss.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that

are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets is considered as cash generating unit.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable amount. Losses are recognized

in statement of profit and loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the company considers that there are no realistic prospects of

recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease

can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss is

reversed through profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised

estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been

in place had there been no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognized immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss, taking into account the normal depreciation/amortization.

xix. Financial Instruments

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another

entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign currency foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate

swaps and currency options; and embedded derivatives in the host contract.

a. Financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies financial assets in the following measurement categories :

I. Those measured at amortised cost and

ii. Those measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of

its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset are

adjusted to the fair value, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss. Purchases or sales of financial

assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades)

are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Measured at amortised cost

Afinancial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the

principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)

method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral

part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment

are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables

Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Afinancial asset is measured at FVOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Financial assets included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value

movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the company recognizes interest income, impairment

losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss

previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVOCI debt instrument is

reported as interest income using the EIR method.
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FinancialAsset at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for financial asset. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized

cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the group company may elect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as at

FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to

as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPLcategory are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and loss.

Derecognition

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised

(i.e. removed from the company’s balance sheet) when:

a. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b. The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash

flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and

rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

c. When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it

evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained

substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the

transferred asset to the extent of the company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognises an associated

liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

company has retained.

d. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying

amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment

loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, and bank

balance.

b) Trade receivables.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

I. Trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss

allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

ii. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a

significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide

for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the

instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to

recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

b. Financial liabilities

Classification

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or amortised costs.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs.

The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, financial guarantee contracts and derivative

financial instruments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon

initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the

purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the group that are

not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also

classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
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Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition,

and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in

own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the company may transfer the

cumulative gain or loss within equity.All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of

the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Derecognition

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial

liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially

modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The

difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps and forward commodity

contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity price risks, respectively. Such derivative financial

instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-

measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair

value is negative.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when,and when the company has

a legally enforceable right to set off the amount and it intends either to settle then an a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the 

liability simultaneously.

Measurement of fair values

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for financial instruments.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The management regularly reviews

significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to

measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such

valuations meet the requirements of IndAS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are

categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value

measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the

entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change

has occurred.

xx. Mandatory exception applied – Standard issued but not yet effective.

Ministry of corporate affairs (MCA) notifies new standard or amendments to existing standards. There is no such notification that would

have been applicable fromApril 1, 2021.
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Note 2 : RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

  Gross carrying amount Land - Lease hold

st
As at 01 April, 2019 0
Additions 0

  Disposals/Adjustments 0
  Other Adjustments 2.44

st
As at 31  March, 2020 2.44
Additions 0

  Disposals/Adjustments 0
  Other Adjustments 0

st
As at 31  March, 2021 2.44

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
st

  Depreciation as at 1 April 2019 0.00
  Depreciation for the year 0.10
  Disposals/Adjustments 0.30

st
As at 31  March, 2020 0.40

  Depreciation for the year 0.10
  Disposals/Adjustments 0.00

st
As at 31  March, 2021 0.50

  Net Carrying Value
st

As at 31  March, 2020 2.04
st

As at 31  March, 2021 1.94

Note 3 : CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
(Amount ` in lacs)

  Capital Work in Progress Building Total

st
As at 31  March, 2020 172.85 172.85

st
As at 31  March, 2021 149.38 149.38

Note : Capital work-in-progress represents building under construction of Rs. Nil (Previous year 23.47 lacs) and preoperative expenses incurred
for mining project of Rs. 149.38 lacs (Previous Year Rs. 149.38 lacs), yet to be capitalised.

(Amount ` in lacs)

Note 4 : OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Amount ` in lacs)

Computer Software
  Cost or deemed cost

stAs at 01 April, 2019 2.01
Additions 0.00

  Disposals 0.00
  Other Adjustments

stAs at 31  March, 2020 2.01
Additions 0.28

  Disposals 0.00
  Other Adjustments

stAs at 31  March, 2021 2.29

Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment

stAmortisation and Impairment as at 1 April, 2019 0.61
Amortisation for the year 0.64

  Disposals 0.00
stAs at 31  March, 2020 1.25

Amortisation for the year 0.37
  Disposals 0.00

stAs at 31  March, 2021 1.62

Net Carrying Value
stAs at 31  March 2020 0.76
stAs at 31  March, 2021 0.67

SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
ST

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021
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NOTE 5. INVESTMENTS - NON CURRENT
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

Investment in Equity Instruments :
(Fair value through OCI)
I.  Quoted
1950700 (Previous Year 1950700) Equity Shares of 113.27 36.33
Ruchi Infrastructure Ltd.of Rs.1/- each fully paid up

50 (Previous Year 50) Equity Shares of 0.32 0.09
Ruchi Soya Industries Ltd. of Rs. 2/- each fully paid up

100 (Previous Year 100) Equity Shares of 0.00 0.00
IMEC Services Ltd. of Rs.10/- each fully paid up

108800 (Previous Year 108800) Equity Shares of 5.17 5.66
Sarthak Global Limited of Rs. 10/-  each fully paid up

118.76 42.08
II. Unquoted

1949284 (Previous Year 1949284) Ordinary shares of 195.59 159.65
Paras Industries Pvt. Ltd., Sri Lanka of SLR 10/- each fully paid up

195.59 159.65

Total 314.35 201.73

Aggregate Amount of Quoted investments and market value thereof 118.76 42.08

Aggregate Amount of Unquoted investments 195.59 159.65

Aggregate Amount of Provision for diminution in value of investments 0 0

NOTE 6. LOANS - NON CURRENT
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st  Particulars As at 31 As at 31
March, 2021 March, 2020

(Unsecured considered good)
Security deposits 55.83 56.18

Total 55.83 56.18

NOTE 7. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON CURRENT
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st  Particulars As at 31 As at 31
March, 2021 March, 2020

Interest accrued on deposits 0.44 2.03
Balance with Bank in Deposit account having maturity more than 12 months
     Earmarked against credit facility 6.74 6.26
     Others 1.52 0.13

8.26 6.39
Others  (refer note 37 (B)) 4.35 4.46
(Gratuity fund balance)

Total 13.05 12.88

SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
stNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021
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SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
stNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021

NOTE 8. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

Deferred Tax Assets
Other Timing Difference 9.46 22.58
Provision for doubtful debts 1.70 2.93

11.16 25.51

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Due to Depreciation difference on property, plant and equipments 6.85 8.23

Total Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (Net) Total 4.31 17.28

NOTE 9. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

Capital advances 1029.96 50.00
Advance income tax (net of provision for tax) 146.49 146.45

Total 1176.45 196.45

NOTE 10. INVENTORIES
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

Raw Materials 145.58 191.76
Work in Progress 94.36 139.81
Finished Goods 122.09 119.14
Stock In Trade 504.91 153.58
Stores and Spares 68.70 63.50

(Valued at lower of Cost and Net realizable value, except for Total 935.64 667.79
scrap valued at net realizable value.) 
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense include INR Nil (Previous year Nil) in respect of written down of inventories to realisable value.
Carrying amount of inventories hypothecated as security against liability. (refer note 35)

NOTE 11. TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

Unsecured, considered good 1320.85 2049.30
Credit impaired 61.07 10.53

1381.92 2059.83
Less - Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 6.12 10.53
     (Refer note 44(b))

Total 1375.80 2049.30

NOTE 12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

    i. Balances with Banks
       in Current Accounts 5.62 145.23
       in Deposit Accounts (with original maturity up to 3 months) 76.06 99.15

    ii. Cheques on hand 0.00 0.00

    ii. Cash on hand 4.81 3.11

Total 86.49 247.49

(54)
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SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
stNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021

NOTE 13. BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

      In Deposit Accounts
      i.  having maturity up to 3 months
          Earmarked against credit facility 26.69 0.00

      ii. having maturity 3 to 12 months
          Earmarked against credit facility 254.51 276.05

Total 281.20 276.05
NOTE 14. LOANS - CURRENT

(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

(Unsecured considered good)
  Inter corporate loan 811.63 696.29
  Security deposits 160.92 133.15

Total 972.55 829.44

NOTE 15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - CURRENT
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

  Other receivables 50.15 394.35
  (includes insurance claim receivable etc.)
   Interest Accrued
    - on fixed deposits with bank 1.22 0.65

Total 51.37 395.00
NOTE 16. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

Advance to suppliers 1103.53 563.91
Balance with govt. authorities 110.63 97.49
Other Receivables 10.17 17.24
(includes prepaid expenses, prepaid insurance etc.)

Total 1224.33 678.64

NOTE 17. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

Authorised
    1,10,00,000 (as at Previous Year 1,10,00,000) Equity 1100.00 1100.00
    Shares of Rs. 10 each

Total 1100.00 1100.00
Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid up
    69,68,850 (as at Previous year 69,68,850) Equity Shares 696.89 696.89
    of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

Total 696.89 696.89
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17.1 The reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding is set out below: (Amount ` in lacs)

 Particulars As at 31  March, 2021 As at 31  March,2020

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

  Equity Shares at beginning of the year 6968850 696.89 6968850 696.89
Add: Shares issued during the year - -

Equity Shares at end of the year 6968850 696.89 6968850 696.89

17.2 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity shares : The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.
10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. The dividend if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval
of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are
eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.

17.3 The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company :

st st
Name of the Shareholders As at 31  March, 2021 As at 31  March,2020

No of shares held % Held No of shares held % Held

Anandmangal Investment & Finance Pvt. Ltd 1385200 19.88 1385200 19.88

  Promise Securities Pvt. Ltd. 400000 5.74 400000 5.74

  Girish Kumar Pushkarlal Agarwal 511200 7.34 511200 7.34

Antarica Resource Ltd. 466540 6.69 466540 6.69

  Manish Shahra 989500 14.2 910000 13.06

  Maha Kosh Papers Pvt. Ltd. 375000 5.38 375000 5.38

st
17.4 During the period of 5 years immediately preceding 31  March, 2021 the company has not allotted any shares as fully paid up for 
payment without being received in cash or by way of bonus shares or bought back any shares.

NOTE 18. OTHER EQUITY
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

General Reserve
Balance as at beginning of the year 16.49 16.49
Add: Transferred during the year 0.00 0.00

Balance as at end of the year 16.49 16.49

Capital Reserve
Balance as at beginning of the year 45.36 45.36
Add: Addition during the year 0.00 0.00
Balance as at end of the year 45.36 45.36

Securities Premium
Balance as at beginning of the year 2676.24 2676.24
Add : Received during the year 0.00 0.00

Balance as at end of the year 2676.24 2676.24

Retained Earnings
Balance as at beginning of the year 20.31 (250.68)
Add: Profit for the year 209.24 270.99
Add/(Less): Remeasurement of defined benefit plan through OCI (net of tax) (2.06) 0.00

Balance as at end of the year 227.49 20.31

Equity Instrument through Other Comprehensive Income
Balance as at beginning of the year (0.19) 68.00
Add: Gain/(Loss) for the year (net of tax) 98.31 (68.19)

Balance as at end of the year 98.12 (0.19)

Total 3063.70 2758.21

Nature and purpose of Reserves
General Reserve
The general reserve is created from time to time on transfer of profit from retained earnings. General reserve is created by transfer from one
component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in general reserve will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit and loss.

Capital reserve
Capital reserve was created out of forfeiture of partly paid equity shares of the company on account of unpaid calls. Reserve can be utilised as per
the provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

st st
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Security Premium
Security premium is created on recording of premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provision of
the CompaniesAct, 2013.

Equity Instrument through Other Comprehensive Income
The Company has elected to recognise changes in fair value of certain class of investments in other comprehensive income. The fair 
value changes are accumulated within this reserve and shall be adjusted on derecognition of investments.

Retained Earnings
The same is created out of profit over years and shall be utilised as per the provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

NOTE 19. BORROWINGS - NON CURRENT
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

Secured
Term Loans

From Banks (Refer note (a) below) 28.92 40.97
Less : Current Maturity of Long term borrowings (Refer note 22) 9.89 12.05

19.03 28.92

From Others (Refer note (a) below) 46.72 0.00
Less : Current Maturity of Long term borrowings (Refer note 22) 17.58 0.00

29.14 0.00

Total 48.17 28.92

Note :
a. Term loan of Rs. 20.27 lacs taken from ICICI Bank Ltd. and term loan of Rs. 30.00 taken from HDFC Bank Ltd. for purchase of new
vehicles. These loans are secured by exclusive first charge on the vehicle purchased through loan. During the year term loan of Rs. 55.00
lacs taken from Daimler Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. towards purchase of new vehicle. This loan is also secured by exclusive first charge
on the vehicle purchased through loan.

Above term loans are repayable as under:
(i) Term loan from ICICI Bank Ltd. - Sanctioned amount Rs 20.27 lacs outstanding Rs. 4.38 lacs (Previous Year Rs. 11.37 lacs) is
repayable in 36 monthly installments (EMI) of Rs. 0.64 lacs (including Interest) commencing from November 2018 and last installment is
due in the month of October 2021. Rate of interest as at the year end 9% p.a. (Previous Year 9%).
(ii) Term loan from HDFC bank Ltd. - Sanctioned amount Rs 30.00 lacs outstanding Rs. 24.54 lacs (Previous Year Rs. 29.60 lacs) is
repayable in 60 monthly installments (EMI) of Rs. 0.62 lacs (including Interest) commencing from March, 2020 and last installment is due
in the month of February, 2025. Rate of interest as at the year end 8.55% p.a. (Previous Year 8.55% p.a.).
(iii) Term loan from Daimler Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. - Sanctioned amount Rs 55.00 lacs outstanding Rs. 46.72 lacs (Previous Year Rs.
Nil) is repayable in 36 monthly installments (EMI) of Rs. 1.72 lacs (including Interest) commencing from October, 2020 and last
installment is due in the month of September, 2023. Rate of interest as at the year end 8.00% p.a. (Previous Year Nil).

NOTE 20. PROVISIONS - NON CURRENT
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

Provision for Employee benefit 3.45 3.38
(Refer note 37 (B) and (C) for disclosure as per IndAS -19)

Total 3.45 3.38

NOTE 21. TRADE PAYABLES
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

(a) Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises (refer note below) 0.00 0.00
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than (a) above 1805.74 1353.43

Total 1805.74 1353.43
Note :
Disclosure required under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises DevelopmentAct, 2006 -
There are no amounts and interest payable to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as at the year end for which disclosure requirement
under MSMEDAct, 2006 are applicable.
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NOTE 22. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - CURRENT
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings (Refer note 19) 27.47 12.05
Other Payables
Advances from Customers 237.53 427.83

  Security deposits 0.15 16.06
  Creditors for Capital Expenses 16.50 0.00

Total 281.65 455.94

NOTE 23. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

Statutory Dues 5.85 5.09
Advances from Customers 204.69 4.45
Other Liabilities 811.07 766.03

Total 1021.61 775.57

NOTE 24. PROVISIONS - CURRENT

(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

Provision for Employee benefit 1.69 1.65
  (Refer note 37 (B) and (C) for disclosure as per Ind AS -19)

Total 1.69 1.65

NOTE 25. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

Current Tax Liabilities 69.84 65.64

Total 69.84 65.64

NOTE 26. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

Sales of Products 13314.39 9443.05
Sale of Services 39.90 112.99

Total 13354.29 9556.04

NOTE 27. OTHER INCOME

(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

Interest Received (at amortised cost) 123.53 113.41
Excess Provision for doubtful debts reversed 4.41 27.28
Other Non operating income
     Rent Received 13.00 14.73
     Profit on sale of Property, plant and equipment 0.00 453.34
     Depreciation reversed on capital subsidy 11.44 0.00
     Miscellaneous Income 12.04 9.95
     Excess registry exps. provision written back 8.12 0.00
     Sundry balances written back 4.32 0.00

Total 176.86 618.71

SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
stNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021
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NOTE 28. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
(Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars for the year for the year
ended 31.03.2021 ended 31.03.2020

Raw Materials Consumed 1567.23 1000.97

Total 1567.23 1000.97
NOTE 29. PURCHASES OF STOCK IN TRADE

(Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars for the year for the year
ended 31.03.2021 ended 31.03.2020

Purchases of traded goods 10871.86 7555.66

Total 10871.86 7555.66

NOTE 30. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
(Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars for the year for the year
ended 31.03.2021 ended 31.03.2020

Closing stocks 
  Finished Goods 122.09 119.14
  Work in Progress 94.36 139.81
  Stock in Trade 504.91 153.58

721.36 412.53
Less : Opening Stocks
  Finished Goods 119.14 87.44
  Work in Progress 139.81 63.36
  Stock in Trade 153.58 423.01

412.53 573.81

Changes in Inventories Total (308.83) 161.28
NOTE 31. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars for the year for the year
ended 31.03.2021 ended 31.03.2020

Salaries and Wages 248.93 245.14
Contribution to Provident and other fund 7.39 7.72
Staff Welfare Expenses 3.78 2.26

Total 260.10 255.12
NOTE 32. FINANCE COSTS

(Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars for the year for the year
ended 31.03.2021 ended 31.03.2020

Interest Expenses (at amortised cost) 33.17 75.22
Other Borrowing costs 58.75 43.80

Total 91.92 119.02
NOTE 33. OTHER EXPENSES

(Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars for the year for the year
ended 31.03.2021 ended 31.03.2020

Power and Fuel 61.25 52.80
Stores, spares and consumables 44.94 36.98
Rent 23.19 26.04
Repairs to Machinery 3.50 3.60
Repairs to Buildings 0.09 0.29
Insurance 20.74 13.27
Rates & Taxes excluding taxes on income 4.14 3.44
Factory Expenses 0.72 3.11
Legal and Professional Charges 60.98 38.94
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 17.29 42.53
Vehicle Expenses 10.62 11.09
Brokerage and Commission 10.89 0.00
Freight Outward 123.75 0.00
Claim and settlement expenses 145.70 0.00
Net Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations 24.32 148.88
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.00 0.05
Miscellaneous Expenses 136.37 147.70

Total 688.49 528.72

(59)

SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED 2020-21



SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
stNOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021

34. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
  Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

A. Contingent Liabilities
Estimated amount of claims against the Company not acknowledged
as debts in respect of:
- Sales Tax, income tax and other demands disputed in appeals 3212.68 847.54
(Net of amount deposited Rs. 157.35 lacs (Previous Year Rs. 160.60 lacs))

B. Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. Nil).

35. The Company has been sanctioned non fund based credit facilities of Rs. 1100 lacs by Punjab National Bank Limited and Rs. 1400
lacs by HDFC Bank Ltd.. Non fund based facilities are secured by hypothecation of entire current assets of the Company present
and future, and further secured by -
- Hypothecation charge over all movables assets, equipments and fixtures of the company located at the Company’s
plant at VillageAkolia, Pithampur, Distt. Dhar, (M.P.).
- 10% cash margin in the form of term deposit receipts.
- Equitable mortgage on Company's plant situated at VillageAkolia, Pithampur, Distt. Dhar, (M.P.).
- Personal guarantee of others.

36. Leases :
The company has adopted IndAS 116 'Leases' effective fromApril 1, 2019 and elect not to apply the requirement of IndAS 116 since
leases are short term leases.

Company as a lessee

The Company has taken various premises under cancellable operating leases. These are renewable on periodic basis at the option
of both lessor and lessee. The aggregate amount of operating lease payments recognized in the statement of profit and loss is Rs.
23.19 lacs (Previous Year Rs. 26.04 lacs). The company has not recognized any contingent rent as expense in the statement of 
profit and loss.
Leasehold land has been recognised as Right of use assets and amortised over the lease term.

Where company is lessor
The assets given on cancellable operating leases by the Company are included in Property, Plant and Equipment. The lease rentals
recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation
are recognized as an expense in the statement of Profit and loss. Initial direct costs are recognized immediately in the statement of
Profit and loss. The company has not recognized any contingent rent as income in the statement of profit and loss.
The aggregate amount of operating lease income recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss is Rs. 13.00 lacs (Previous Year
Rs. 14.73 lacs).

37 Employee Benefit :
(A) Defined contribution plans
In respect of defined contribution plans, an amount of Rs. 5.85 lacs (Previous Year: Rs. 6.07 lacs) towards employer contribution to
provident fund and Rs. 1.26 lacs (Previous Year : Rs. 1.41 lacs) towards employer contribution to ESIC and admin. charges in
respect of PF Rs. 0.23 lacs (Previous Year : Rs. 0.24 lacs) have been recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year.

(B) Defined benefit plans
The company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972. Employees who are in continuous
service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The Company has opted for scheme with Life Insurance Corporation of India(
"LIC" ) to cover its liabilities towards employees gratuity . The annual premium paid to LIC is charged to Profit and Loss Account.
The Company also carries out Actuarial valuation of gratuity using Projected Unit Credit Method as required by Ind As - 19 and the
difference between fair value of plan assets and liability as per actuarial valuation as at the year end is recognised in statement of
Profit and Loss.
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(Amount ` in lacs)

  Particulars For the year For the year
2020-21 2019-20

I. Change in Benefit Obligation Rs. Rs.
Liability at the beginning of the year 24.74 22.87
Interest Cost 1.21 1.30
Current Service Cost 1.54 2.03
Remeasurement due to :
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in financial assumptions (0.15) 0.68
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions 0.00 0.01
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of experience changes 3.31 (0.67)
Benefit Paid (1.65) (1.47)
Closing of defined benefit obligation 29.00 24.75

II. Change in Fair value of Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 29.63 24.53
Interest on plan assets 1.52 1.42
Contributions by Employer 4.01 4.71
Remeasurement due to :
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets 0.25 0.44
Benefit Paid (1.65) (1.47)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 33.76 29.63

III. Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet 
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 29.00 24.75
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 33.76 29.63
Net funded obligation (4.76) (4.88)
Amount not recognized due to asset limit 0.41 0.42
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) recognised in balance sheet (4.35) (4.46)
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) is bifurcated as follows :
Current 0.00 0.00
Non current (4.35) (4.46)

IV. Expenses Recognized in Profit and Loss A/c
Current Service Cost 1.54 2.03
Interest Cost (0.29) (0.12)
Administrative expenses 0.00 0.00
Past Service Cost 0.00 0.00
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on settlement 0.00 0.00
Expense  Recognized in P& L 1.25 1.91

V. Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Opening amount recognised in OCI outside profit and loss account (1.37) (1.37)
Remeasurement due to :
Changes in financial assumptions (0.15) 0.68
Changes in demographic assumptions 0.00 0.00
Experience adjustments 3.31 (0.67)
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets (0.25) (0.44)
adjustment to recognise the effect of asset ceiling (0.05) 0.42
Closing amount recognised in OCI outside profit and loss account 1.49 (1.38)

VI. Net defined benefit liability/(asset) reconciliation
Opening net defined benefit liability/(asset) (4.46) (1.66)
Expense charged to profit and loss account 1.25 1.91
Employers Contribution (4.01) (4.71)
Amount recognised outside Profit & Loss 2.86 (0.01)
Closing net defined benefit liability/(asset) (4.36) (4.47)

VII. Assumptions
Discount Rate  Current 6.55% 6.40%
Rate of Return on Plan Assets Current Funded Funded
Salary Escalation Current 5.00% 3.00%
Atrition rate 2.00% 2.00%

(I) Expected contribution for defined benefit plan for the next financial year would be Rs. Nil (Previous Year
     Rs. Nil).
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VIII. Sensitivity Analysis
Gratuity is a lump sum plan and the cost of providing these benefits is typically less sensitive to small changes in demographic 
assumptions. The key actuarial assumptions to which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive to are discount rate 
and future salary escalation rate. The following table summarizes the impact in percentage terms on the reported defined 
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account of an increase or decrease in the reported assumption 
by 50 basis points.

                                                                                                                                                                                                 (Amount ` in lacs)

st st
Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
50 bps 50 bps 50 bps 50 bps

Change in discounting rate 29.51 28.52 25.23 24.29

Change in salary escalation rate 28.51 29.52 24.28 25.23

Inherent Risks
The plan is of a final salary defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks
pertaining to the plan. In particular, there is a risk for the Company that any adverse salary growth or demographic experience or
inadequate returns on underlying plan assets can result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees in future.
Since the benefits are lump sum in nature the plan is not subject to any longevity risks.

(C) LEAVE ENCASHMENT
The liability in respect of leave encashment is determined using actuarial valuation carried out as at Balance Sheet date. Actuarial
gain and losses are recognized in full in statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which they occur.

Liability on account of Leave Encashment as at the year end Rs. 5.14 lacs (Previous Year Rs. 5.03 lacs).

38. Earning Per Share (EPS) :-
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

Net Profit after tax (Rs. In lacs) 209.24 270.99
Nominal Value of each equity share (Rupees) 10 10
Weighted average no. of shares 6968850 6968850
Basic and diluted earning per share (Rupees) 3.00 3.89

39. Payment to auditors :
                          (Amount ` in lacs)

st st
Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

StatutoryAudit Fees 1.50 1.50
TaxAudit Fees 0.50 0.50
Other Services 0.75 0.78
CostAudit Fees 0.20 0.20
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.01 0.01
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40. Segment Reporting as per Ind AS 108 :
2020-21                     (Amount ` in lacs)

L.P.G.  Trading   Unallocable     Total
Cylinders  Business Amount

(a) Operating segment information
Segment Revenue 2013.35 11381.82 135.98 13531.15

1271.13 8334.14 569.48 10174.75
Segment Results (PBIT) 15.08 316.41 54.45 385.94

21.56 230.15 268.25 519.96
Less : Finance Cost 91.92

119.02
Profit before Tax 294.02

400.94
Less : Tax Expenses 84.78

129.95
Profit after Tax 209.24

270.99
Segment Assets 1316.21 2975.91 2700.62 6992.74

1419.90 2126.85 2592.87 6139.62
Segment Liability 690.73 1469.30 1072.12 3232.15

541.25 914.11 1229.14 2684.50
Segment Property, Plant & Equip. purchased/acquired 42.22 64.59 0.00 106.81

113.32 34.57 0.00 147.89
Segment depreciation 36.80 25.72 3.84 66.36

33.59 1.87 9.48 44.94

Previous year figures shown in Italic

(b)  Geographical segment information
The company's all operations are in India only.

 (Amount ` in lacs)

st st
   Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

Domestic Revenue 12998.20 10106.74
Export Revenue 532.95 68.01

Total 13531.15 10174.75

(c)  Revenue from major products
The following is an analysis of the Company's segment revenue from continuing operations from its major products -

 (Amount ` in lacs)

st st
   Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

  LPG cylinders 2013.35 1271.13
Trading Business 11381.82 8334.14

(d)  Revenue from major customers
Details of Company's revenue of 10% or more contributed by individual customers for the year ended March 31, 2021.

 (Amount ` in lacs)

st st
   Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

  LPG cylinders 0.00 0.00
Trading Business 0.00 4234.99

Total 0.00 4234.99

SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED
ST

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021
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41. Related Party Disclosure :
(A) Related parties and their relationship

a (1). Key management personnel

Name Designation
Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma Whole Time Director
CS Amit Jain Company Secretary (resigned w.e.f. 16.03.2021)
CA Kailash Kumar Agarwal Chief Financial Officer
a (2) Non-executive non independent director
    Ms. Deepika Arora

b. Parties where control exists Nil

c. Entities where company, key management personnel & close members have significant influence and 
    where transactions have taken place Nil

Related party relationship as identified by company and relied upon by auditor.
st

(B) Transactions with related parties for the year ended 31  March, 2021
                                                                                                                                                                                 (Amount ` in lacs)

st st
   Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March, 2021 March, 2020

Expenditure :
Remuneration
Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma 10.52 10.02
CS Amit Jain 13.59 12.57
CA Kailash Kumar Agarwal 16.89 16.08

Post employment benefits
Mr. Yogender Mohan Sharma 0.14 0.14
CS Amit Jain 0.17 0.17
CA Kailash Kumar Agarwal 0.22 0.22

42. Pursuant to disclosure pertaining to section 186 (4) of the Companies Act 2013.
                                                                                                                                                                                 (Amount ` in lacs)

st st
   Particulars Rate of As at 31 As at 31

Interest March, 2021 March, 2020

a. Particulars of Loan given and outstanding as at the year end:
Anik Jics Logistic Pvt. Ltd 15.00% 811.63 696.29
(Loans are given for strategic business purpose.)
b. Investments made :
The same are classified under respective heads.
(Refer Note 5).

43. Financial and Derivatives Instruments -
Derivative contract entered by the Company and outstanding as on 31.03.2021
(i) Notional amount of Forward Contracts (Purchase) entered into by the company and outstanding as on 31.03.2021 -

Particulars As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Currency USD USD

No. of contracts 5 2

Amt. in Foreign Currency (in lacs) 9.19 4.93

Equivalent amt. in INR lacs 672.3 368.82

Above contract is for hedging purpose and not for speculation.

(ii) Foreign currency exposure which are not hedged as at balance sheet date -

Particulars As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Currency

Amt. payable in USD (in lacs) 13.18 8.31
Amt. payable in INR lacs 963.63 621.08
Amt. receivable in USD (in lacs) 1.21 0.97
Amt. receivable in INR lacs 88.81 72.30

Net Amount Payable in USD (in lacs) 11.97 7.34

Equivalent amt. in INR lacs 874.82 548.78
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44. Financial risk management objectives and policies
In its ordinary operations, the companies activities expose it to the various types of risks, which are associated with the financial
instruments and markets in which it operates. The company has a risk management policy which covers the foreign exchanges risks and
other risks associated with the financial assets and liabilities such as interest rate risks and credit risks. The risk management policy is
approved by the board of directors. The following is the summary of the main risks:

a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates (currency risk) and interest rates (interest rate risk),
will affect the companies income or value of it’s holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rate. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair value of fixed interest bearing financial instrument because of
fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing financial
instrument will fluctuate because of fluctuations in the interest rates.
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the borrowing from banks and others.
Currently company is not using any mitigating factor to cover the interest rate risk.

(Amount ` in lacs)

Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year ended
st st

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Interest rate risk exposure (variable rate)
Borrowings from banks and others 75.64 40.97

Total borrowings 75.64 40.97

Interest rate sensitivity
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on exposure to interest rates for borrowing at the end of the reporting period
and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period in case of
term loans that have floating rates. If the interest rates had been 1% higher or lower and all the other variables were held constant, the
effect on Interest expense for the respective financial years and consequent effect on companies profit in that financial year would have
been as below:

Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year ended
st st

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Impact on Profit or Loss for the year decrease 0.76 0.41
Impact on Profit or Loss for the year Increase (0.76) (0.41)

ii) Foreign currency risk
The Company enters into transactions in currency other than its functional currency and is therefore exposed to foreign currency risk.
The Company analyses currency risk as to which balances outstanding in currency other than the functional currency of that Company.
The company enters in to derivative financial instrument such foreign currency forward contract and option contracts to mitigate the risk
of changes in exchange rate on foreign currency exposure.

Following table analysis foreign currency assets and liabilities on balance sheet date.
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

USD exposure in INR USD exposure in INR

Receivable net exposure
Trade receivable 88.81 72.30

Payable net exposure
Trade payable 963.63 621.08
Forward exchange contracts against imports and foreign currency payable 672.30 368.82

Payable net exposure 1635.93 989.90

Total net exposure Receivable/(Payable) (1547.12) (917.60)

(65)

SARTHAK INDUSTRIES LIMITED 2020-21



Sensitivity to foreign currency risk
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity in the USD currencies if the currency rate is strengthened/weakened by 1% with all other
variables held constant. The below impact on the Company’s profit before tax is based on changes in the fair value of unhedged foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities at balance sheet date:

 (Amount ` in lacs) 

Currency  Sensitivity analysis 

 For the Year ended For the Year ended
st st

31  March 2021  31  March 2020 

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

  Sensitivity to foreign currency risk (15.47) 15.47 (9.18) 9.18

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that arises from the possibility that the counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss.Financial assets that are subject to such risk, principally consist of trade receivables,
Investments and loans and advances. None of the financial insturments of the company results in material concentration of credit
risk.Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, however, the Company continues to attempt to
recover the receivables. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.The impairment for
financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company’s past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each balance sheet date.

Trade and other receivables

To Manage trade and other receivables, the company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking in to account the
financial conditions, economic trends, analysis to historical bad debts and ageing of such receivables.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables has been considered from the date the invoice falls due :
(Amount ` in lacs)

st st
Particular As at 31  March 2021 As at 31  March 2020

  0 to 90 days 1160.20 1604.04
  91 to 180 days 160.02 245.61
  181 to 270 days 0.63 109.69
  271 to 365 days 0.00 0.00
  More than 365 days 61.07 100.49

  Total 1381.92 2059.83

The following table summarizes the change in the loss allowances measured using expected credit loss
(Amount ` in lacs)

  Particulars Amount

st
Balance as at 1 April, 2019 37.81

  Provided during the year 0.00
  Reversed during the year 27.28

st
  Balance as at 31  March, 2020 10.53
  Provided during the year 0.00
  Reversed during the year 4.41

st
  Balance as at 31  March, 2021 6.12

Investments

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in liquid securities and only with counter-parties that have a good
credit rating. The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties apart from those already given in
financials, and does not have any significant concentration of exposures to specific industry sectors or specific country risks.

Cash & Cash Equivalents

The Company holds cash & cash equivalents with credit worthy banks of Rs. 81.68 lacs as at 31st March, 2021 (Rs. 244.38 lacs as at 31st
March, 2020). The credit worthiness of such banks is evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good.

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due.The Company has obtained
non-fund based working capital line from bank. The company's treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as
settlement management. In addition, process and policies related to such risk are overseen by senior management. Management
moniters the company's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.
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Expected contractual maturity for derivative and non derivative Financial Liabilities:

 (Amount ` in lacs) 

  Particulars Total  Less than 1 year  1 to 5 years  >5 years 

st
As at 31  March, 2021

  Non Derivative Financial Liabilities
  Borrowings 75.64 27.47 48.17 0.00
Trade payables (non derivative) 1133.44 1133.44 0.00 0.00

  Other financial liabilities 254.18 254.18 0.00 0.00

  Total 1463.26 1415.09 48.17 0.00

  Derivative Financial Liabilities
Trade payables (forward contract outstanding) 672.30 672.30 0.00 0.00

  Total 672.30 672.30 0.00 0.00

st
As at 31  March, 2020
Non Derivative Financial Liabilities

  Borrowings 40.97 12.05 28.92 0.00
Trade payables (non derivative) 984.60 984.60 0.00 0.00

  Other financial liabilities 443.88 443.88 0.00 0.00

  Total 1469.45 1440.53 28.92 0.00

  Derivative Financial Liabilities
Trade payables (forward contract outstanding) 368.82 368.82 0.00 0.00

Total 368.82 368.82 0.00 0.00

Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity 
reserves attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.

The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to
provide returns to shareholders and other stake holders.The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of
changes in the financial condition and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders (buy back its shares) or issue new shares.

st st
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31  March, 2021 and 31
March, 2020.

Gearing Ratio: (Amount ` in lacs) 

st st
  Particulars As at 31  March 2021 As at 31  March 2020

  Debt (Refer Notes 19 and 22) 75.64 40.97
  Cash and cash equivalent (Refer Note 12) 86.49 247.49

Adjusted net Debt (10.85) (206.52)

Total Equity 3760.59 3455.11

 Net Debt to equity ratio (0.00) (0.06)
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45. Financial Instruments by Category and fair value heirarchy
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, other than those
with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values.

(Amount ` in lacs)

As 31  March 2021  Fair Value Measurement  Fair Value hierarchy 

  Particulars  FVTPL  FVOCI Amortised Cost  Level-1  Level-2  Level-3 

  Financial assets
  Investments in equity instruments 314.36 0.00 118.76 0.00 195.59
  Cash and cash equivalents 86.49
  Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 281.20
Trade Receivables 1375.80

  Loans 1028.38
  Other financial assets 64.42

Total 0.00 314.36 2836.29 118.76 0.00 195.59

Financial liabilities
  Borrowings 75.64
Trade Payables 1805.74

  Other financial liability 254.18

  Total 0.00 0.00 2135.56 0.00 0.00 0.00

st
As 31  March 2020 Fair Value Measurement Fair Value hierarchy 

  Particulars  FVTPL  FVOCI Amortised Cost  Level-1  Level-2  Level-3 

  Financial assets
  Investments in equity instruments 201.73 0.00 42.07 0.00 159.66
  Cash and cash equivalents 247.49
  Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 276.05
Trade Receivables 2049.30

  Loans 885.62
  Other financial assets 407.88

  Total 0.00 201.73 3866.34 42.07 0.00 159.66

  Financial liabilities
  Borrowings 40.97
Trade Payables 1353.42

  Other financial liability 443.88

  Total 0.00 0.00 1838.27 0.00 0.00 0.00

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial 
instruments into three levels prescribed under the Ind AS. An explanation for each level is given below.
Level 1:Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly 
observable
Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

46. Tax Expenses :
A. Tax expenses recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss (Amount ` in lacs)

For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

  (i) Current Tax
  in respect of current year 85.37 112.58

Total Current Tax 85.37 112.58
  (ii) Deferred Tax
  in respect of current year (0.57) 6.04

Total Deferred income tax expense/(credit) (0.57) 6.04

  (iii) Income tax for earlier years (0.02) 11.34

Total income tax expense/(credit) 84.78 129.96

st
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B. Amounts Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

  (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
  tax impact on remeasurements of the defined benefit Plans (0.80) 0.00
  tax impact on Gain/Loss on change in fair value of equity instruments 14.33 (10.02)
  (ii) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss 0.00 0.00

  (B) Total 13.53 (10.02)

  Total Tax expenses for the year (A+B) 98.31 119.94

A reconciliation of the income tax amount between the enacted income tax rate and the effective income tax of the Company is
as follows:

Profit before tax 294.02 400.95
Applicable Tax Rate (%) 27.82% 27.82%
income tax as per above rate 81.80 111.54
Adjustments for taxes for
       Expense not deductible for tax purposes 24.56 9.96
       Expense allowable/considered separately for tax purposes (21.00) (146.35)

Tax at sepecial rate 0.00 106.82
       Income tax for earlier years (0.02) 11.34
       Others (0.56) 36.65

Income tax as per statement of profit and loss 84.78 129.96

Effective income tax rate 28.83% 32.40%

The movement in Deferred tax assets and liabilities  during the year ended  March 31, 2021

  Movement during the year ended Opening Balance Recognised in Recognised in Closing Balance
  March 31,2021 Profit or Loss OCI

  Deferred tax assets
  Other timing differences 22.58 0.42 (13.54) 9.46
  Provision for doubtful debts 2.93 (1.23) 0.00 1.70

Deferred tax liabilities

  Depreciation on PPE 8.23 (1.38) 0.00 6.85

  Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) net 17.28 0.57 (13.54) 4.31

  Mat credit entitlement 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) total 17.28 0.57 (13.54) 4.31

The movement in Deferred tax assets and liabilities  during the year ended  March 31, 2020

  Movement during the year ended Opening Balance Recognised in Recognised in Closing Balance
  March 31,2020 Profit or Loss OCI

  Deferred tax assets
  Other timing differences 12.81 (0.25) 10.02 22.58
  Provision for doubtful debts 10.52 (7.59) 0.00 2.93

 Deferred tax liabilities

  Depreciation on PPE 10.03 (1.80) 0.00 8.23

  Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) net 13.30 (6.04) 10.02 17.28

  Mat credit entitlement 18.18 (18.18) 0.00 0.00

  Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) total 31.48 (24.22) 10.02 17.28
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47. The provisions related to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under section 135 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and rules made
thereunder are not applicable to the Company.

48. In view of the Covid-19 pandemic, there have been several restrictions imposed by governments across the globe on the travel, 
goods movement and transportation considering public health and safety measures. The Company is primarily engaged in
business of manufacturing of LPG Cylinders and trading of Agri and Non Agri Commodities. This COVID-19 pandemic has surely
impacted the operations of the Company in many ways. Accordingly as of 31 March 2021, based on the facts and circumstances
existing as of that date, the Company does not anticipate any material uncertainties which affects its liquidity position and also ability
to continue as a going concern. However, the impact assessment of Covid-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties
associated with its nature and duration. The management will continue to closely monitor the evolving situation and assess its
impact on the business of the Company.

49. Previous year's figures are regrouped or rearranged wherever considered necessary to make them comparable with current year's
figures.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
For SMAK & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN 020120C)

Yogender Mohan Sharma Nimishek Ved
Whole Time Director Director
DIN: 03644480 DIN: 07362817

CA Atishay Khasgiwala
Partner
M. No. : 417866 CS Riya Bhandari CA Kailash K Agarwal
Place : Indore Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Dated : June 30, 2021
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